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Announced agreement to merge with Brooklyn Union to create
a holding company with expected revenues of $ 4.5 billion.

Reached an agreement with the Long Island Power Authority
(LIPA) for a partial LIPA buyout of LILCO, providing for electric
rate reductions of 16-18 percent.

Generated sufficient cash from operations to meet all operating,
construction and dividend requirements.

Redeemed $ 415 million of maturing General 5 Refunding bonds
with cash on hand thereby reducing the Company's debt ratio to
below 60 percent.
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Few would contest that, despite a long list of accom-

plishments throughout 1996, the most compelling event of the

year occurred just days before year's end.

On December 29, LILCO and The Brooklyn Union Gas

Company (BU) announced a merger that would create a new,

powerful energy company stretching from Staten Island to

Montauk Point, The combined company, which willserve about

2.2 million customers, will have a new name and new oppor-

tunities in the rapidly changing energy marketplace.

On March 19, 1997, another significant event occurred.

Governor George Pataki unveiled an agreement between LILCO

and the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA) for LIPA to acquire

a portion of LILCO's electric business, paving the way for a 16

to 18 percent reduction in Long Island's electric rates immedi-

ately upon completion of the transaction.

At the conclusion of these two transactions, the Long

Island Lighting Company willbe transformed into a new entity,

a comprehensive energy services company with the resources to

diversify and grow in the changing energy industry. I strongly

believe that the emerging company will have tremendous

potential in the marketplace of the 21st century.

A WINNING COMBINATION

Throughout the lengthy discussions that led to each of

these agreements, your Board of Directors had a single priority
—that any agreement reached would be a good business

decision, one that benefits our investors, our customers and our



p'r

employees. The LILCO/Brooklyn Union merger and the LIPA

transaction each accomplish that goal.

The logistics of the merger are fairly straightforward. In

a share exchange agreement, LILCO shareholders will receive

0.803 shares of the new company for each of their LILCO

common shares. Brooklyn Union shareholders willreceive one

share in the new company for each common share they own.

LILCO shareholders will own 66 percent of the new company;

Brooklyn Union shareholders will own 34 percent. If the

LIPA transaction is also completed, LILCO shareholders will

receive 0.880 shares for each common share, increasing LILCO

ownership of the new company to 68 percent. Under either

scenario, the merged company will be organized as a holding

company with subsidiaries to handle various energy products

and services.

Upon completion of the merger, I willbecome chairman

and chief executive officer (CEO) of the new company and

Robert B. Catell, currently chairman and CEO of Brooklyn Union,

will become president and chief operating officer. After a

period of one year, Mr. Catell will succeed me as CEO of the
C

merged company, while I continue as chairman. The board of

directors of the new company willbe comprised of 15 members,

six from LILCO and six from Brooklyn Union, with three new

members to be chosen jointly.

STRENGTHENING OVR POSITION

The benefits of the merger for both LILCO and Brooklyn

Union are clear. By joining two utilities with adjacent territo-
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ries and complementary services, we create a stronger, more

versatile player in an increasingly competitive energy market.

The new company will be able to use its resources more

effectively. Certain administrative functions can be combined

to cut costs, and the larger entity willhave greater economies

of scale in such areas as fuels purchasing and energy trading.

We expect that these economies of scale will result in more

than $ 1 billion in efficiency savings in the first ten years of

the merger.

In addition, customers of both utilities willbenefit from

the experienced workforce available to the merged 'utility.

By cross-training its employees, the new company will have a

larger pool of workers to respond to storms and other service

demands, improving reliability to customers throughout the

combined service territory.

BUILDING ON ACCOMPLISHMENT

The LIPA transaction offers additional benefits to the

combined company. LIPA, a New York State agency authorized

by statute during the Shoreham controversy to acquire all or

part of LILCO's stock or assets, received an exemption from the

1986 Federal Tax Policy Act which allows it to issue tax-exempt

debt to finance such an acquisition. It is the only state agency

in the country with this exemption.

In the years since LIPA was created, several plans to use

LIPA's unique, tax-free status to reduce Long Island electric

rates have been proposed. In late 1995, Governor Pataki

charged a newly reconstituted LIPA board with developing a



new plan that would produce double-digit rate reductions. The

challenge for LILCO was to work with LIPA to use its tax-free

status in a way that lowered rates significantly while allowing

customers to continue to receive reliable electric services.

The proposed agreement with LIPA accomplishes this objective

and more.

The agreement with LIPA is more complex than the

LILCO/BU merger. Under the proposed transaction, LIPA will

acquire LILCO's electric transmission and distribution system,

its electric regulatory assets and its 18 percent share in the

Nine Mile Point Two nuclear power plant, Through a stock

transaction, LIPA will acquire these assets for approximately

$ 2.5 billion in cash and assume the obligation for $ 339 million

in preferred stock. It willalso assume approximately $ 3.6 bil-

lion of LILCO debt securities.

LIPA has indicated that it willfinance the transaction by

issuing tax-exempt bonds. It is expected that the transaction

will provide the combined LILCO/BU with about $ 2 billion in
cash, after the payment of taxes 'and other transition costs.

After we receive the approval of our shareholders, LILCO and

Brooklyn Union will begin a strategic planning process to

determine the best use of our joint assets to maximize share-

holder value.

In the negotiated agreement, LIPA also will acquire the

tax certiorari lawsuit on the Shoreham property and those

pending on LILCO's other properties throughout Long Island.

LIPA has indicated that it will settle the Shoreham lawsuit by

creating a two percent rate differential between Nassau and



Suffolk Counties, since Suffolk has received the tax benefit

from the Shoreham overassessment. The net result for cus-

tomers will be an across-the-board rate reduction of between

16 and 18 percent, achieved through the combination of

synergy savings from the merger, the Shoreham property tax

settlement, and the full effects of LIPA's tax exemption and

lower financing costs, LIPA has stated that the remaining tax

suits willbe resolved without any property tax increases for the

community.

The merged LILCO/BU will retain the entire operations

of Brooklyn Union, as well as LILCO's natural gas distribution

system, non-nuclear generation, office buiMings, customer

offices, computer systems, and other common plant items.

MAINTAININGRELIABLE SERVICE

As part of the LIPA agreement, the new company created

from the LILCO/BUmerger willoperate the LIPA-owned electric

transmission and distribution system under an eight-year

management contract. LILCO has entered into a power supply

agreement with LIPA under which LILCO/BU will supply and

manage LIPA's power requirements for a 15-year period. LIPA

will contract to purchase approximately 3,900 megawatts of

generation capacity annually from the merged company—

essentially all of LILCO's current Long Island-based generation.

LIPA will. also assume all existing LILCO firm power purchase

contracts and transmission agreements.

After the third year of,the power supply agreement, LIPA

will have a one-year option to purchase all of LILCO/BUs

electric generating assets for fair market value. If they choose



not to exercise this option, they have the ability to gradually

decrease the amount of power purchased from the LILCO/BU

company beginning in the eighth year of the agreement,

Although the transaction itself is complicated, the

benefits are simple. With the completion of the LIPA agree-

ment, the new company willcontinue to distribute natural gas,

generate electricity and manage the electric business on Long

Island, but will also have the capital to invest in other busi-

nesses.

VISION FOR THE FUTURE

Customers benefit through reduced rates,. greater

economic development potential for our region, and protection

from property tax increases. Shareholders can benefit through

the increased opportunities available to the merged company.

With the combined resources of LILCO and Brooklyn Union, as

well as the proceeds from the LIPA transaction, the merged

utilitycan develop and market innovative energy products and

services in the years ahead. We will be a formidable player in
the competitive energy market,

There are still a number of steps to be taken before

either the merger or the LIPA transaction can take place.

The first step is approval by both LILCO and Brooklyn Union

shareholders of the merger and by LILCO common and certain

preferred shareholders, for the LIPA transaction. In addition to

the shareholder votes, the merger must also be approved by the

New York State Public Service Commission, the Federal Energy

Regulatory Commission, the Federal Trade Commission, and the

Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
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The LIPA transaction also requires state and federal

approvals, including a favorable ruling by the Internal Revenue

Service. We expect to be able to finalize the merger and the

LIPA transaction concurrently, with the entire process taking

between 12 and 18 months to complete.

The changing energy marketplace willbe our challenge in

the years beyond the merger and the LIPA transaction. We have

been given the opportunity to truly take advantage of the

deregulated energy industry. We will. still provide quality

energy services to the customers we now service, and we wiB

have the resources to acquire diverse energy assets that can

greatly expand the scope of our business.

These are truly exciting times. Oliver Wendell Holmes, 3r.,

said, "The greatest thing in this world is not so much where we

are, but in which direction we are moving." LILCO is moving in

a direction that has immeasurable potential in the new energy

frontier,

I look forward to helping create this new entity. I hope

you share my anticipation and excitement for the future.

William 3. Catacosinos

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

May 28, 1997
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Financial Review

Results of Operations

Average common shares
outstandin 120.4 119.2 115.9

Earnings per Common Share $ 2.20 $ 2.10 $ 2.15

The Company's 1996 earnings are higher for both the
electric and gas businesses as compared to 1995. While
the Company's allowed rate of return in 1996 was the
same as 1995, the higher earnings for the electric business
are a result of the Company's increased investment in
electric plant in 1996, as compared to 1995. Factors
contributing to the increase in electric business earnings
include the Company's continued efforts to reduce opera-
tions and maintenance expenses and the efficient use of
cash generated by operations to retire maturing debt.

The increase in earnings in the gas business was the result
of additional revenues due to the continued growth in the
number of gas space heating customers. Also contributing
to the increase in gas business earnings was a 3.2% rate
increase which became effective December 1, 1995, and an
increase in off-system sales.

The Company's 1995 earnings per common share were
lower than 1994 earnings per common share as a result
of the New York State Public Service Commission's (PSC)
electric rate order, effective December 1, 1994, that low-
ered the allowed return on common equity from 11.6%
to 11.0% and modified certain performance-based incen-
tives. Partially offsetting the effects on earnings of the
electric rate order was higher gas business earnings in
1995 when compared to 1994.

Rammed
Electric Revenues

Revenues from the Company's electric operations totaled
$ 2.5 billion in each of the years ended December 31, 1996,
1995 aiid 1994.

The Company experienced a growth in electric system
sales in 1996 on a weather normalized basis compared
to 1995 and in 1995 compared to 1994. This growth is
primarily attributable to the addition of new electric
customers. The Company's electric revenues fiuctuate as

a result of system growth, variations in weather, and fuel

Zmiaaa
Earnings for the years 1996, 1995 and 1994 were as

follows:

(In millions ofdollars and shares except earnings per share)

1996 1995 1994

Net income $ 316.5 $ 303.3 $ 301.8
Preferred stock dividend

re uirements 52.2 52.6 53.0

Earnings for Common Stock $ 264.3 $ 250.7 $ 248.8

costs, as electric base rates have remained unchanged
since December 1993. However, these variations have no
impact on earnings due to the current electric rate struc-
ture which includes a revenue reconciTiation mechanism
which eliminates the impact on earnings caused by sales
volumes that are above or below adjudicated levels. Total
electric sales volumes were 16,414 million kilowatt hours
(kWh) in 1996, compared to 16,572 million kWh in 1995

'nd

16,382 million kWh in 1994.

For a further discussion on electric rates, see Notes 1 and
3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

Gas Revenues
Revenues from the Company's gas operations for the years
1996, 1995 and 1994 were $684 million, $591 milfion and
$586 million, respectively.

The increase in 1996 gas revenues when compared to 1995
is attributable to a 3.2% gas rate increase which became
effective on December 1, 1995, an increase in sales vol-
umes, an increase in gas fuel expense recoveries and rev-
enues generated through the Company's continuing efforts
to provide non-traditional services, including off-system
sales. The increase in 1995 revenues when compared to
1994 is attributable to a 3.8% gas rate increase, effective
December 1, 1994, offset by a decrease in fuel expense
recoveries.

The Company experienced a 6.3% increase in firm sales

volumes in 1996 compared to 1995, due to the addition
of approximately 5,100 gas space heating customers and
colder weather during the 1996 heating season when
compared to the prior year. The increase in sales volumes
caused by variations in weather has a limited impact on
revenues as the Company's current gas rate structure
includes a weather normalization clause which mitigates .

the impact on revenues of experiencing weather that is
warmer or colder than normaL

The Company continues to increase its space heating
penetration through various marketing programs, and as a
result of these efforts has added approximately 20,000 gas

'pace heating customers over the past three years.

The recovery of gas fuel expenses in 1996 when compared
to 1995 increased approximately $31 million as a result of
higher average gas prices and increased per customer usage
due to colder weather than experienced in the prior year.
In 1995, the Company experienced a decrease of $24 mil-
lion in the recoveries of gas fuel expenses when compared
to the same period of 1994, primarily due to lower average
gas prices.

In 1996, non-traditional revenues totaled $46 million,
including $37 million for off-system sales. In 1995 and
1994, revenues from off-system sales totaled $ 24 million
and $26 million, respectively. Profits generated from
off-system sales are allocated 85% to the firm gas rate-
payer and 15% to the shareowners, in accordance with
PSC mandates.

10



Fuel for Hectric Operations
Oil
Gas

Nuclear
Purchased ower

Total
Gas fuel
Total

$ 158 $ 98 $ 145
138 149 101

15 14 15

329 310 308
640 571 569
323 264 279

$ 963 $ 835 $ 848

Electric fuel and purchased power nux for the years 1996,
1995 and 1994 were as follows:

In thousands o MWH
i99ii 1995 1994

PIWH % I4WH % HWH

Oil 4,219 24
Gas 4,542 25
Nuclear 1,558 9
Purchased ower 7,388 42

3,099 17

6,344 36
1,301 7

7,143 40

4,480 25

4,056 23

1,498 9

7,640 43
Total 17,707 100% 17,887 100% 17,674 100%

During 1996, the Company completed the first of two
planned conversions of oil fired steam generating units
at its Port Jefferson Power Station to dual firing units,
bringing the total number of steam units capable of bum-
ing natural gas to eight. Of the Company's eight steam
generation units capable of burning natural gas, six are

-dual-fired, providing the Company with the ability to
burn the most cost efficient fuel available, consistent with
seasonal environmental requirements, thereby providing
customers with the lowest possible cost energy. The con-
version of the second unit at Port Jefferson has a project-
ed completion date of May 1997.

As a result of a sharp increase in the cost of natural gas
during the year, generation with oil became more econo-
mical than generation with gas. The total barrels of oil
consumed for electric operations were 7.1 million, 5.2
million, and 7.5 million for the years 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively.

Cogenerators, Independent Power Producers (IPPs) and
energy supplied from a facility in Holtsville, New York,
owned by the New York Power Authority (NYPA), and con-
structed for the benefit of the Company, provided approxi-
mately 16% of the total energy made available by the
Company in 1996 and 1995, compared to approximately
14% in 1994. Increases in purchased power expenses in
1996 compared to 1995 is due to increases in the average
unit price and in the quantity purchased. The increase in
purchased power expenses in 1995 compared to 1994 is
primarily attributable to increased purchases from the
NYPA Holtsville faciTity which began commercial opera-
tions in.1994.

Gas system fuel expense increased in 1996 by $58 million
when compared with 1995, due to higher firm sales vol-

Fuel and Purchased Power

Fuel and purchased power expenses for the years 1996,
1995 and 1994 were as follows:

In millions o dollars
1996 1995 1994

umes and a 26% increase in the Company's average price
of gas. In 1995, this expense decreased by $15 million
when compared with 1994, as a result of a decline in the
average price of gas, despite higher sales volumes.

Variations in fuel costs have no impact on operating
results as the Company's current rate structures include
fuel adjustment clauses whereby variations between actual
fuel costs and fuel costs included in base rates are
deferred and subsequently returned to or collected from
customers. However, in a period when base electric fuel
costs are in excess of actual electric fuel costs, such
amounts are credited to the RMC.

Operations and Maintenance Expenses
Operations and maintenance (08 M) expenses, excluding
fuel and purchased power, were $499 million, $511 million
and $541 million, for the years 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively. The decrease in 08M for 1996 compared to
1995 and 1995 compared to 1994 was primarily due to
the Company's continuing cost containment program
which resulted in lower plant maintenance expenses,
lower distribution expenses and lower administrative and
general expenses.

Rate Moderation Component
The Rate Moderation Component (RMC) represents the
difference between the Company's revenue requirements
under conventional ratemaking and the revenues provided
by its electric rate structure. The RMC is adjusted monthly
for the operation of the Company's Fuel Moderation
Component (FMC) mechanism and the difference between
the Company's share of actual operating costs at Nine Mile
Point Nuclear Power Station, Unit 2 (NMP2) and amounts
provided for in electric rates.

In 1996, the Company recorded a non-cash credit to
income of approximately $50 million, representing the
amount by which revenue requirements exceeded revenues
provided for under the current electric rate structure.
Partially offsetting this accretion were the effects of the
FMC mechanism and the differences between actual and
adjudicated operating costs for NMP2, as discussed above.
The adjustments to the accretion of the RMC totaled
$26 million, of which $24 million was derived from the
operation of the FMC mechanism.

In 1995 and 1994, the Company recorded non-cash
charges to income of approximately $22 milUon and $198
million, respectively, after giving effect to the credits gen-
erated principally by the operation of the FMC mechanism.
FMC credits for 1995 and 1994 totaled $87 million and
$83 million, respectively.

Based on the Company's current long-range projections for
energy sales, operations and maintenance costs, property
taxes, construction and other expenditures, the RMC bal-
ance willbe fullyamortized by year-end 2001. The assump-
tions used in the forecast are as follows: (i) the Company's
base electric rates remain at current levels through the
year 2001; (ii) the Company receives PSC permission to
credit the Phase I Shoreham property tax litigation pro-
ceeds that the Company received in January 1996 to the
RMC balance in 1997, at which time the proceeds plus



interest are expected to be $83 million; and (iii) $360
million of the total judgment awarded the Company in
Phase IIof the Shoreham property tax case is received by
the Company during the 1999 to 2001 time frame and will
be applied to reduce the RMC balance. Based upon the
assumptions used in this forecast, RMC non-cash charges
to income willbe approximately $52 million in 1997, $89
million in 1998, $143 milUon in 1999, $57 million in 2000
and $57 million in 2001. These estimates are based on the
multi-year rate plan (Plan) submitted to the PSC in
September 1996.

Ifthe assumptions outlined immediately above are not
adopted by the PSC, the Company proposed as an alternative
in the September 1996 filing that, in order to insure the
timely, and certain recovery of any remaining RMC balance at
November 30, 1999, that the Company recover any such bal-
ance through rates over a two year period using its Fuel
Adjustment Clause. By using the Fuel Adjustment Clause,

which it has used in the past to recover other regulatory
assets, customer bills wouM be automatically adjusted in
order to amortize on a straight-line-basis any remaining RMC

balance over a two year period ending November 30, 2001.

Based upon the above, and the fact that actions of the
PSC continue to support the full recovery of the Shoreham
related regulatory assets, as provided in the Rate Modera-
tion Agreement (RMA), the Company believes that future
revenues willbe provided specificaUy for the recovery of
the RMC balance. For a further discussion of the Plan, see
Rate Matters, under the heading "Hectric."

For a further discussion of the RMC, see Note 3 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

Other Regulatory Amortization
In 1996, the net total of other regulatory amortization
was a non-cash charge to income of $127 million, com-
pared to $162 million in 1995 and $4 milUon in 1994.

The change from 1996 to 1995 is primarily attributable
to the operation of the revenue reconclUation mechanism
included in the Company's electric rate structure, partially
offset by a non-cash charge to income recorded to reduce
the Company's earnings to the levels provided for in rates
for both the electric and gas businesses.

The electric revenue reconciTiation mechanism, as estab-
lished under the LILCO Ratemaking and Performance Plan
(LRPP), eliminates the impact on earnings of experiencing
sales that are above or below adjudicated levels by provid-
ing a fixed annual net margin level (defined as sales
revenue, net of fuel and gross receipts taxes). Variations
in electric revenue resulting from differences between
actual and adjudicated net margin sales levels are deferred
on a monthly basis during the rate year. The Company
recorded a non-cash charge to income of approximately
$ 3 million and $64 million for the years 1996 and 1995,
respectively, representing a net margin level in excess of
that provided for in rates. The decrease between 1996
and 1995-was the result of an increase in the adjudicated
net margin sales levels and cooler summer weather in
1996 when compared to 1995.

Earnings in excess of the Company's allowed return on
common equity generated by the electric business was

approximately $9 million for the 1996 rate year compared
to approximately $ 6 million for the 1995 rate year. In
accordance with the Company's electric rate structure,
earnings above the allowed return on common equity are
applied against the RMC balance. The ratepayers'ortion
of gas earnings in excess of a 10.6% allowed return on
common equity totaled $10 million for the 1996 rate year
compared to $1 million in 1995.

In 1995, other regulatory amortization was higher than
1994 as a result of the operation of the revenue reconciTia-
tion mechanism and an increase in the amortization of
prior period LRPP deferrals, as more fullydiscussed in
Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

Operating Taxes

Operating taxes were $472 million, $448 miUion and $407
million for the years 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.
The increase in 1996 compared to 1995 is primarily attrib-
utable to increased property taxes, as well as higher gross
receipts taxes due to increased revenues. The increase in
1995 when compared to 1994 is primarily attributable to
higher property taxes.

Federal Income Tax

Federal income tax was $209 milUon, $206 million and
$177 million for the years 1996, 1995 and 1994, respec-
tively. The increase in federal income tax in 1996 when
compared to 1995 was primarily attributable to higher
earnings, partially offset by the utilization of investment
tax credits. The increase in 1995 when compared to 1994
was primarily attributable to higher earnings and the
amortization of previously deferred taxes resulting from a
change in corporate tax rates.

I D

Other income and deductions, totaled $19 million for
1996, compared to $34 million and $35 million for 1995
and 1994, respectively. The decrease in 1996 when
compared to 1995 is primarily attributable to the recogni-
tion of nonrecurring expenditures associated with one of
the Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries, a decrease in
non-cash carrying charge income associated with regula-
tory assets not currently m rate base and the recognition
in 1995 of certain litigation proceeds related to the con-
struction of the Shoreham Nuclear Power Station. The

'hange from 1995 when compared to 1994, in addition to
the effects of the litigation proceeds, resulted from lower
non-cash carrying charges and lower incentive income
as a result of the PSC rate order for the rate year ended
November 30, 1995, which eliminated certain
performance-based incentives.

Lower interest expense in 1996 compared,to 1995, and in
1995 compared to 1994 is primarily attributable to lower
outstanding debt levels, partially offset by higher letter of
credit and commitment fees associated with the change in
the Company's credit rating in 1996. For a further discus-
sion of the Company's investment ratings, see the discus-
sion below under the heading "Investment Rating". The
Company's strategy continues to be the application of

12



available cash balances toward the satisfaction of maturing
debt whenever practicable. Accordingly, in 1996, the
Company used cash on hand and cash previously deposit-
ed with the Trustee of the General & Refunding (G&R)
Mortgage to satisfy the mandatory redemption of $415
million of the Company's G&R Bonds. During 1995, the
Company used approximately $75 million of cash on hand
to redeem, prior to maturity, the remaining outstanding
First Mortgage Bonds.

Liquidityand Capital Resources

Lhuidifz
During 1996, cash generated from operations exceeded
the Company's operating, construction and dividend
requirements. This positive cash fiow is the result of,
among other things: (i) the Company's continuing efforts
to reduce both 0&M expenses and construction expendi-
tures; (ii) lower interest payments resulting from lower
debt levels; and (iii) increased revenues from off-system
gas sales.

At December 31, 1996, the Company's cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately $280 million,
compared to $351 million at December 31, 1995. In
addition, the Company has available for its use a revolving
line of credit through October 1, 1997, provided by its
1989 RevoMng Credit Agreement (1989 RCA). In July
1996, at the Company's request, the amount committed by
the banks participating in the faciTity was reduced from
$300 million to $ 250 million. The Company believes this
action is appropriate given the levels of cash on hand,
projected future cash generated'rom operations and
modest debt and preferred stock maturities through 1998.
This line of credit is secured by a first lien upon the
Company's accounts receivable and fuel oil inventories.
For a further discussion of the 1989 RCA, see Note 7 of
Notes to Financial Statements.

In January 1996, the Company received approximately
$81 million, including interest, from Suffolk County pur-
suant to a judgment in the Company's favor that found
that the Shoreham property was overvalued for property
tax purposes between 1976 and 1983 (excluding 1979
which had previously been settled). The Company has
petitioned the PSC to aUow the Company to reduce the
RMC balance by the amount received, net of litigation
costs incurred by the Company. The PSC has not yet acted
on the Company's petition and, therefore, such amounts
continue to be deferred on the Company's balance sheet as
other regulatory liabilities.

In November 1996, the New York State Supreme Court
ruled that Shoreham had also been over-assessed for real
property tax purposes for the years 1984 through 1992.
Based on this over-assessment, the Company has prelimi-
narily estimated that it is entitled to a tax refund of
approximately $500 milUon plus interest. Ifthe assess-
ment for the 1991-92 tax year is used to determine the
proper amount of payments-in-lieu-of-taxes (PILOTs),
this ruling should also result in a refund of approximately
$260 million plus interest for PILOTs for the years
1992-1996.

Qui&ixathu
The Company's capitalization, including current maturities
of long-term debt and current redemption requirements
of preferred stock, at December 31, 1996 and 1995, was
$7.9 bilUon and $8.3 billion, respectively. At December
31, 1996 and 1995, the Company's capitalization ratios
were as follows:

1996 1995

Long-term debt
Preferred stock
Common shareowners' ui

59.3% 61.8%
8.9 8.6

31.8 29.6

100.0% 100.0%

In support of the Company's continuing goal to reduce
its debt ratio, the Company, in 1996, retired at maturity
$415 million of G&R Bonds, with cash on hand and cash
previously deposited with the Trustee of the G&R Mortgage.

The refund of any real property taxes, PILOTs, and interest
thereon, net of litigation costs, willbe used to reduce
electric rates in the future. However, the court's ruling is
subject to appeal and, as a result, the Company is unable
to determine the amount and timing of any real property
tax and PILOT refunds.

The Company does not intend to access the financial
markets during 1997 to meet any of its operating, con-
struction or refunding requirements, including the retire-
ment of its $250 million of maturing debt on February 15,
1997. However, ifnecessary, the Company willavail itself
of interim financing via the 1989 RCA to satisfy a portion
of the debt maturing in February 1997. The Company will
avail itself of any tax-exempt financing made available to
it by the New York State Energy Research and Development
Authority (NYSERDA). With respect to the repayment of
$101 million of maturing debt in 1998 and the repayment
of $454 million of maturing debt and $22 milUon of
mandatory redemption requirements of preferred stock in
1999, the Company intends to use cash generated from
operations to the maximum extent practicable.

In 1990 and 1992, the Company received Revenue
Agents'eports

disallowing certain deductions and credits claimed
by the Company on its federal income tax returns for the
years 1981 through 1989. The Revenue Agents'eports
refiect proposed adjustments to the Company's federal
income tax returns for this period which, ifsustained,
would give rise to tax deficiencies totaling approximately
$227 million. The Company believes that any such
deficiencies as finally determined would be significantly
less than the amounts proposed in the Revenue

Agents'eports.

The Company has protested some of the
proposed adjustments which are presently under review by
the Regional Appeals Office of the Internal Revenue Service.
The Company believes that cash balances at the time of
settlement willbe sufficient to satisfy any settlement
reached. However, ifnecessary, the Company willavail
itself of interim financing via the 1989 RCA to meet this
obligation. The Company currently believes that a settle-
ment of the 1981 through 1989 years shouM be reached
with the Regional Appeals Office sometime in 1997.



The Company expects to use cash on hand to satisfy the
$250 million of G&R Bonds scheduled to mature in
February 1997. However, ifnecessary, the Company will
avail itself of interim financing via the 1989 RCA to satisfy
a portion of this obligation. h

G&R Bonds
Debentures
Preferred Stock

BBB- Ba1 BBB- BBB

BB+ Ba3 BB+ BB+

BB+ ba3 BB-'B
Minimum Investment

Grade BBB- Baa3 BBB- BBB-

Bold face indicates securities that meet or exceed minimum
investment grade.

In December 1996, Fitch announced that it willbegin rating
preferred stock on the same scale as investment grade and
speculative bonds and, as a result, the Company's preferred stock
is now rated BB-.

The Company's securities are rated by Standard and Poor's

(S&P), Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's), Fitch
Investors Service, L.P. (Fitch) and Duff& Phelps Credit
Rating Co. (D&P). The rating agencies have been watching
the electric utilityindustry closely and have expressed
concern regarding the ability of high cost utilities, such
as the Company, to recover all of their fixed costs in a
competitive, deregulated marketplace.

In June 1996, Moody's downgraded its rating of the
Company's G&R Bonds from minimum investment grade to
one notch below minimum investment grade. Moody's
also downgraded its ratings of the Company's debentures
and preferred stock, which were already below minimum
investment grade.

In November 1996, Moody's revised its outlook on the
Company's G&R Bonds, debentures and preferred stock
from negative to stable, as a result of a New York State
Supreme Court ruling that found that Shoreham had been
overvalued for real property taxes for the years 1984
through 1992. For a further discussion of this ruling, see

Item 3, Legal Proceedings.

As a result of the announcement of the merger agreement
on December 29, 1996 between the Company and The
Brooklyn Union Gas Company, the Coinpany's bond ratings
"outlook"/"Credit Watch" was raised to "positive" by
Moody's, S & P and Fitch. D&P has reaffirmed the
Company's ratings but maintains a rating watch with
uncertain implications.

At December 31, 1996 the ratings for each of the
Company's principal securities were as foRows:

S&P Moody's Fitch D&P

Capital Requirements
Construction"

Electric
Gas

Common

Total Construction

Refundings and Dividends
Long-tenn debt
Preferred stock
Common stock dividends
Preferred stock dividends

Total Refundings and Dividends

Shoreham post-settlement costs

Total Capital Requirements

Capital Provided
Cash generated from operations
Long-term debt issued
Common stock issued
Other investing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash

$ 142 $ 144
71 79

27 21

240 244

415 100

5 5

214 211

52 53

686 369

52 71

$ 978 $ 684

$ 892 $ 772

49

19 20

(4) 9

71 (166)

Total Capital Provided $ 978 $ 684

'Bxcludes noncash allowance for other funds used during
construction.

For further information, see the Statement of Cash Flows.

For 1997, total capital requirements (excluding common
stock dividends) are estimated to be $629 million, of which
maturing debt is $251 million, construction requirements
are $282 million, preferred stock dividends are $52 million,
preferred stock sinking funds are $ 1 million and Shoreham
post-settlement costs are $43 million (including $41 mil-
lion for payments-in-lieu-of-taxes). The Company believes
that cash generated from operations coupled with begin-
ning cash balances willbe sufficient to meet all capital
requirements in 1997.

Based upon the projections of peak demand for electric
power, the Company believes it willneed to acquire addi-
tional generating or demand-side resources starting in
1998 in order to maintain satisfactory electric supply.
The Company's Integrated Electri Resource Plan (IERP),
recommends a combination of a peak load reduction
demand-side management program and a capacity purchase
as the most economical method of meeting this need. The

IERP projects that new electric generating capacity will
need to be installed on Long Island to meet peak demand
in the summer of 2001. It is anticipated that such new
capacity would be acquired through a competitive bidding
process.

Capital requirements and capital provided for 1996 and
1995 were as follows:

(In millions ofdollars)

1996 1995



Other Matters
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On December 29, 1996, the Company and The Brooklyn
Union Gas Company (Brooklyn Union) entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Exchange (Share Exchange
Agreement), pursuant to which the companies willbe
merged in a transaction that willresult in the formation
of a new holding company. The new holding company,
which has not yet been named, willserve approximately
2.2 million customers and have annual revenues of more
than $4.5 billion. The merger is expected to be accom-
plished through a tax-free exchange of shares.

The description of the Share Exchange Agreement set
forth herein does not purport to be complete and is.
qualified in its entirety by the provisions of the Share
Exchange Agreement, filed as an exhibit to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 30, 1996.

The proposed transaction, which has been approved by
both companies'oards of directors, would unite the
resources of the Company with the resources of Brooklyn
Union. Brooklyn Union, with approximately 3,300
employees, distributes natural gas at retail, primarily in a
territory of approximately 187 square miles which includes
the boroughs of Brooklyn and Staten Island and approxi-
mately two-thirds of the borough of Queens, all in New
York City. Brooklyn Union has energy-related investments
in gas exploration, production and marketing in the
United States and Canada, as well as energy services in
the United States, including cogeneration products,
pipeline transportation and gas storage.

Under the terms of the proposed transaction, the
Company's common shareowners willreceive .803 shares
(the Ratio) of the new holding company's common stock
for each share of the Company's common stock that they
currently hold. Brooklyn Union common shareowners will
receive one share of common stock of the new holding
company for each common share of Brooklyn Union they
currently hold. Shareowners of the Company willown
approximately 66% of the common stock of the new
holding company while Brooklyn Union shareowners will
own approximately 34%. The proposed transaction will
have no effect on either company's debt issues or
outstanding preferred stock.

The Share Exchange Agreement contains certain covenants
of the parties pending the consummation of the transac-
tion. Generally, the parties must carry on their businesses
in the ordinary course consistent with past practice, may
not increase dividends on common stock beyond specified
levels and may not issue capital stock beyond certain
limits. The Share Exchange Agreement also contains
restrictions on, among other things, charter and
by-law amendments, capital expenditures, acquisitions,
dispositions, incurrence of indebtedness, certain increases

in employee compensation and benefits, and affiliate
transactions. Accordingly, the Company's ability to engage
in certain activity described herein may be limited or
prohibited by the Share Exchange Agreement.

Upon completion of the merger, Dr. William3. Catacosinos
willbecome chairman and chief executive officer of the
new holding company; Mr. Robert B. Catell, currently
chairman and chief executive officer of Brooklyn Union,
willbecome president and chief operating officer of
the new holding company. One year after the closing,
Mr. Catell willsucceed Dr. Catacosinos as chief executive
officer, with Dr. Catacosinos continuing as chairman.
The board of directors of the new company willbe
composed of 15 members, six from the Company, six from
Brooklyn Union and three additional persons previously
unaffiliated with either company and jointlyselected by
them.

The companies willcontinue their respective current
dividend policies until the closing, consistent with the
provisions of the Share Exchange Agreement. It is expect-
ed that the new holding company's dividend policy willbe
determined prior to closing.

The merger is conditioned upon, among other things,
the approval of the merger by the holders of two-thirds
of the outstanding shares of common stock of each of
the Company and Brooklyn Union and the receipt of all
required regulatory approvals. The Company is unable to
determine when or ifall required approvals willbe
obtained.

In 1995, the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA), an
agency of the State of New York (NYS), was requested by
the Governor of NYS to develop a plan, pursuant to its
authority under NYS law, to provide an electric rate reduc-
tion of at least 10%, provide a framework for long-term
competition in power production and protect property
taxpayers on Long Island.

The Share Exchange Agreement contemplates that
discussions, which are currently in progress, willcontinue
with LIPA to arrive at an agreement mutually acceptable
to the Company, Brooklyn Union and LIPA, pursuant to
which LIPA would acquire certain assets or securities of
the Company, the consideration for which would inure to
the benefit of the new holding company. In the event
that such a transaction is completed, the Ratio would
become .880. In connection with discussions with LIPA,
LlPA has indicated that it may exercise its power of
eminent domain over all or a portion of the Company's
assets or securities, in order to achieve its objective of
reducing current electric rates, ifa negotiated agreement
cannot be reached. The Company is unable to determine
when or ifan agreement with LIPA willbe reached, or
what action, ifany, LIPA willtake ifsuch an agreement is
not reached.
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Electric .

In 1995, the Company submitted a compliance filing
requesting that the PSC extend the provisions of its 1995

electric rate order, discussed below, through November 30,
1996. This filingwas updated by the Company in August
1996 and approved by the PSC in January 1997.

During 1996, the PSC instituted numerous initiatives
intended to lower electric rates on Long Island. The

Company shares the PSC's concern regarding electric rate
levels and is prepared to assist the PSC in pursuing any
reasonable opportunity to reduce electric rates. The

initiatives instituted were as follows:

~ An Order to Show Cause, issued in February 1996,
to examine various opportunities to reduce the
Company's electric rates;

~ An Order, issued in April 1996, expanding the scope
of the Order to Show Cause proceeding in an effort
to provide "immediate and substantial rate relief."
This order directed the Company to file financial and
other information sufficient to provide a legal basis

for setting new rates for both the single rate year
(1997) and the three-year period 1997 through
1999; and

~ An Order, issued in July 1996, to institute an
expedited temporary rate phase in the Order to
Show Cause proceeding to be conducted in parallel
with the ongoing phase concerning permanent
rates.

The Order issued in July requested that interested
parties file testimony and exhibits sufficient to provide
a basis for the PSC to decide whether the Company's elec-

tric rates should be made temporary and, ifso, the proper
level of such temporary rates. The Staff of the PSC (Staff),
in response to this Order, recommended that the Company's

rates be reduced on a temporuy basis by 4.2% effective
October 1, 1996, until the permanent rate case is decided.
In its filing, the Company sought to demonstrate that
current electric rate levels were appropriate and that
there was no justification for reducing them. Although
evidentiary hearings on the Company's, Staffs and other
interested parties'submissions were subsequently held on
an expedited basis to enable the PSC to render a decision
on the Company's rates, as of the date of this report, the
PSC has yet to take any action.

In September 1996, the Company completed the filing of
a multi-year rate plan (Plan) in compliance with the April
1996 Order. Major elements of the Plan include: (i) a base

rate freeze foi the three-year period December 1, 1996

through November 30, 1999; (ii) an allowed return on
common equity of 11.0% through the term of the Plan
with the Company fullyretaining all earnings up to
12.66%, aiid sharing with the customer any earnings
above 12.66%; (iii) the continuation of existing LRPP

revenue and expense reconciliation mechanisms.and
performance incentive programs; (iv) crediting all net pro-
ceeds from the Shoreham property tax litigation to the
RMC to reduce its balance; and (v) a mechanism to fully
recover any outstanding RMC balance at the end of the
1999 rate year through inclusion in the Fuel Cost

Adjustment (FCA), over a two-year period.

1995 Electric Rate Order

The basis of the 1995 Order included minimizing future
electric rate increases while continuing to provide for the
recovery of the Company's regulatory assets and retaining
consistency with the Rate Moderation Agreement's (RMA)
objective of restoring the Company to financial health.

The 1995 Order, which became effective December 1, 1994,
froze base electric rates, reduced the Company's allowed
return on common equity from 11.6% to 11.0% and modi-
fied or eliminated certain performance-based incentives,
as discussed below.

The LRPP, originally approved by the PSC in November

1991, contained three major components: (i) revenue
reconciliation; (ii) expense attrition and reconciTiation;
and (iii)performance-based incentives. In the 1995 Order,

the PSC continued the three major components of the
LRPP with modifications to the expense attrition and
reconciTiation mechanism and the performance-based
incentives. The revenue reconciTiation mechanism remains
unchanged.

Revenue reconciliation provides a mechanism that
,
eliminates the impact of experiencing sales that are above

or below adjudicated levels by providing a fixed annual
net margin level (defined as sales revenues, net of fuel
expenses and gross receipts taxes). The difference
between actual and adjudicated net margin levels are

deferred on a monthly basis during the rate year.

The expense attrition and reconciliation component
permits the Company to make adjustments for certain
expenses recognizing that these cost increases are

unavoidable due to inflation and changes outside the
control of the Company. Pursuant to the 1995 Order, the
Company is permitted to reconcile expenses for property
taxes only, whereas under the original LRPP the Company
was able to reconcile expenses for wage rates, property
taxes, interest costs and demand side management (DSM)
COStS.

The original LRPP had also provided for the deferral
and amortization of certain cost variances for enhanced
reliabiTity, production operations and maintenance
expenses and the application of an inflation index to
other expenses. Under the 1995 Order, these deferrals
have been eliminated and any unamortized balances were

credited to the RMC during 1995.

The modified performance-based incentive programs
include the DSM program, the customer service perfor-
mance program and the transmission and distribution



reliability.program. Under these revised programs, the
Company is subject to a maximum penalty of 38 basis
points of the allowed return on common equity and can
earn up to 4 basis points under the customer service
program. This 4 basis point incentive can only be used
to offset a penalty under the transmission and distribu-
tion reliabiTity program. Under the original LRPP, the
Company was allowed to earn up to 40 basis points or
forfeit up to 18 basis points under these incentive
prograllls.

The partial pass-through fuel incentive program remains
unchanged. Under this incentive, the Company can earn
or forfeit up to 20 basis points of the allowed return on
common equity.

For the rate year ended November 30, 1996, the Company
earned 20 basis points, or approximately $4.3 million, net
of tax effects, as a result of its performance under all
incentive programs. For the rate years ended November
30, 1995 and 1994, the Company earned 19 and 50 basis
points, respectively, or approximately $4.0 million and
$9.2 million, respectively, net of tax effects, under the
incentive programs in effect at those times.

The deferred balances resulting from the net margin and
expense reconciliations, and earned performance-based
incentives are netted at the end of each rate year, as

established under the LRPP and continued under the 1995
Order. The first $15 million of the total deferral is recov-
ered from or credited to ratepayers by increasing or
decreasing the RMC balance. Deferrals in excess of the
$15 million, upon approval of the PSC, are refunded to or
recovered from the customers through the FCA mechanism
over a 12-month period.

For the rate year ended November 30, 1996, the amount
to be returned to customers resulting from the revenue
and expense reconciliations, performance-based incentive
programs and associated carrying charges totaled $14.5
million. Consistent with the mechanics of the LRPP, it is
anticipated that the entire balance of the deferral willbe
used to reduce the RMC balance upon approval by the PSC

of the Company's reconciTiation filing which was submitted
to the PSC in January 1997. For the rate year ended
November 30, 1995, the Company recorded a net deferred
LRPP credit of approximately $41 million. The first
$15 million of the deferral was applied as a reduction to
the RMC while the remaining portion of the deferral of
$26 millionwillbe returned to customers through the FCA
when approved by the PSC. For the rate year ended
November 30, 1994, the Company recorded a net deferred
charge of approximately $79 million. The first $ 15 million
of the deferral was applied as an increase to the RMC

while the remaining deferral of $64 million was recovered
from customers.

Another mechanism of the LRPP provides that earnings in
excess of the allowed return on common equity, excluding
the impacts of the various incentive and/or penalty pro-

grams, are used to reduce the RMC. For the rate years
ended November 30, 1996 and 1995, the Company earned

$9.1 million and $6.2 million, respectively, in excess of its
allowed return on common equity. These excess earnings
were applied as reductions to the RMC. In 1994, the
Company did not earn in excess of its allowed return on
common equity.

The Company is currently unable to predict the outcome
of any of the rate proceedings currently before the PSC

and their effect, ifany, on the Company's financial posi-
tion, cash flows or results of operations.

Gas

In December 1993, the PSC approved a three-year gas rate
settlement between the Company and the Staff of the PSC,

The gas rate settlement provided annual gas rate increases
of 4.7%, 3,8% and 3.2% for each of the three rate years
beginning December 1, 1993, 1994, and 1995, respective-
ly. In the determination of the revenue requirements for
the gas rate settlement, an allowed return on common
equity of 10.1% was used.

The gas rate settlement also provided that earnings in
excess of a 10.6% return on common equity be shared
equally between the Company's firm gas customers and its
shareowners. For the rate years ended November 30,
1996, 1995 and 1994, the firm gas customers'ortion of
'gas earnings in excess of the allowed return on common
equity totaled approximately $10 million, $ 1 million and
$7 million, respectively. In 1996, the Company was grant-
ed permission by the PSC to apply the customers'ortion
of the gas excess earnings and associated canying charges
for the 1995 and 1994 rate years to the recovery of
deferred costs associated with postretirement benefits
other than pensions and costs incurred for investigation
and remediation of manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites.
The Company has requested that the same treatment be
granted for the disposition of the customers'ortion of
the 1996 rate year gas excess earnings.

The Company currently has no gas rate filings before the
PSC and does not intend to file a gas rate case during the
current rate year, unless required to do so in connection
with the proposed merger with Brooklyn Union.

The electric industry continues to undergo fundamental
changes as regulators, elected officials and customers,
seek lower energy prices. These changes, which may have
a signiTlcant impact on future financial performance of
electric utilities, are being driven by a number of factors
including a regulatory environment in which traditional
cost-based regulation is seen as a barrier to lower energy
prices. In 1996, both the PSC and the Federal Energy
Reguhtory Commission (FKRC) continued their separate,
but in some cases parallel, initiatives with respect to
developing a framework for a competitive electric
marketplace.

17



11ie Electric Industry- State Regulatory Issues

In 1994, the PSC began the second phase of its
Competitive Opportunities Proceedings to investigate
issues related to the future of the regulatory process in an
industry which is. moving toward competition. The PSGs

overall objective was to identify regulatory and ratemak-
ing practices that would assist New York State utilities
in the transition to a more competitive environment
designed to increase efficiency in providing electricity
while maintaining safe, affordable and reliable service.

As a result of the Competitive Opportunities Proceedings,
in May 1996, the PSC issued an order (Order) which
stated its belief that introducing competition to the
electric industry in New York has the potential to reduce
electric rates over time, increase customer choice and
encourage economic growth. The Order caUs for a compet-
itive wholesale power market to be in place by early 1997
which willbe followed by the introduction of retail access

for all customers by early 1998.

The PSC stated that competition should be transitioned
on an individual company basis, due to differences in
individual senrice territories, the level and type of strand-
able investments (i.e., costs that utiTities would have

otherwise recovered through rates under traditional cost
of service regulation that, under market competition,
wouM not be recoverable) and utiTity specific financial
conditions.

The Order contemplates that implementation of competi-
tion willproceed on two tracks. The Order requires that
each major electric utilityfile a rate/restructuring plan
which is consistent with the PSC's policy and vision for
increased competition. Those plans were submitted by
October 1, 1996, in compliance with the Order. However,
the Company was exempted from this requirement due to
the PSC's separate investigation of the Company's rates
and LIPA's examination of the Company's structure. Since
October 1, 1996, proceedings have commenced for the five
electxic utilities which filed restructuring plans in accor-

dance with track one and the Company has intervened in
each of these proceedings.

The PSC order also anticipated that certain other filings
would be made on October 1, 1996, by all New York State
utiTities, to both the PSC and the FERC. The filings were

to address the delineation of transmission and distribution
faciTities jurisdiction between the FERC or the PSC, a pric-
ing of each company's transmission services, and a joint
filing by all the utiTities to address the formation of an
Independent System Operator (ISO) and the creation of a

market exchange that wilLestablish spot market prices.
Although there were extensive collaborative meetings
among the parties, it was not possible for the additional
filings to be completed by October 1, 1996. While these
discussions are continuing in an attempt to narrow the
differences among the parties, on December 31, 1996, the
NYPP members submitted a compliance filing to the FERC

which provides open membership and comparable services

to eligible entities in accordance with FERC Order 888,
discussed below. The New York State utilities submitted
the fuLL ISO/Power Exchange filing to the FERC, in January
1997 which proposes to establish a competitive wholesale
marketplace in New York State for electxic energy and
transmission pricing at market based rates.

The PSC envisions that a fullyoperational wholesale
competitive structure willfoster the expeditious move-
ment to full retail competition. The PSGs vision of the
retail competitive structure, known as the FLexible Retail
Poolco Model, consists of: (i) the creation of an ISO to
coordinate the safe and reliable operation of electric
generation and transmission; (ii) open access to the trans-
mission system, which would be regulated by the FERC;

(iii) the continuation of a regulated distribution company
to operate and maintain the distribution system; (iv) the
deregulation of energy/customer services such as meter
reading and customer billing; (v) the abiTity of customers
to choose among suppliers of electricity; and (vi) the
allowance of customers to acquire electricity either by
long-term contracts, purchases on the spot market or a
combination of the two.

„One issue discussed in the Order that couM affect the
Company is strandable investments. The PSC stated in
its Order that it is not required to aUow recovery of all

~ prudently incurred investments, that it has considerable
discretion to set rates that balance ratepayer and share-

hoMer interests, and that the amount of strandable
investments that a utiTitywillbe permitted to recover
willdepend on the particular circumstances of each

utility. Additionally, the Order provided that every effort
should be made by utiTities to mitigate these costs prior to
seeking recovery.

Certain aspects of the restructuring envisioned by the
PSC —particularly the PSC's apparent determinations that
it may deny the utiTities recovery of prudent investments
made on behalf of the public, order retail wheeling,
require divestiture of generation assets and deregulate
certain sectors of the energy market —could, ifimple-
mented, have a negative impact on the operations and
financial conditions of New York's investor-owned electric
utiTities, including the Company.

The Company is party to a lawsuit commenced in
September 1996 by the Energy Association of New York
State and the state's other investor-owned electric utiTities
(coLLectively, Petitioners) against the PSC in New York
Supreme Court, Albany County

f

that the Court declare that the Order is unlawful or, in the
alternative, that the Court clarify that the PSGs state-
ments in the Order constitute simply a policy statement
with no binding Legal effect. In November 1996, the Court
issued a Decision and Order denying the Petitioners'



request to invalidate the Order. Although the Court
stated that most of the Order is a non-binding statement
of policy, the Court rejected the Petitioners'ubstantive
challenges to the Order. In December 1996, Petitioners
filed a notice of appeal with the Third Department of the
Appellate Division of the New York State Supreme Court.
The litigation is ongoing and the Company is unable at
this time to predict the likelihood of success or the impact
of the litigation on the Company's financial position, cash
fiows or results of operations. Oral argument in the
Appellate Division has not yet been scheduled, but a
decision is expected by the end of 1997.

The Electric Industry - Federal Regulatory Issues
In April 1996, in response to its Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking issued in March 1995, the FERC issued two
orders relating to the development of competitive
wholesale electric markets.

Order 888 is a final rule on open transmission access and
stranded cost recovery and provides that the FERC has
exclusive jurisdiction over interstate wholesale wheeling
and that utiTity transmission systems must now be open
to qualifying sellers and purchasers of power on a
non-discriminatory basis.

Order 888 allows utilities to recover legitimate, prudent
and verifiable stranded costs associated with wholesale
transmission, including the circumstances where full
requirements customers become wholesale transmission
customers, such as where a municipality establishes its
own electric system.

With respect to retail wheeling, the FERC concluded that
it has jurisdiction over rates, terms and conditions of ser-
vice, but would leave the issue of recovery of the costs
stranded by retail wheeling to the states.

Order 888 required utiTities to file open access tariffs
under which they would provide transmission services,
comparable to those which they provide themselves and to
third parties on a non-discriminatory basis. Additionally,
utilities must use these same tariff's for their own whole-
sale sales. The Company filed its open access tariffin
duly 1996.

In September 1996, the FERC ordered Rate Hearings on
28 utiTity transmission tariff's, including the Company's.
On the basis of a preliminary review, the FERC was not
satisfied that the tariff rates were just and reasonable.
Settlement discussions have been held between the
Company and various intervenors concerning the
Company's transmission rates. In December 1996, the
parties reached a tentative settlement on the rate issues.
The procedural schedule was suspended pending filing of
the settlement agreement, which is anticipated during the
first quarter of 1997. Non-rate issues associated with the
Company's open access tariffhave not yet been addressed

by the FERC.

Order 889, which is a final rule on a transmission pricing
bulletin board, addresses the rules and technical standards
for operation of an electronic bulletin board that will,
make available, on a real-time basis, the price, availability
and other pertinent information concerning each trans-
mission utiTity's services. It also addresses standards of
conduct to ensure that transmission utiTities functionally
separate their transmission and wholesale power merchant
functions to prevent discriminatory self-dealing. In
December 1996, the Company filed its standards of
conduct in accordance with the Order.

With other members of the industry, the Company has
participated in several joint petitions for rehearing and/or
clarification of the FERGs Orders 888 and 889. Among
other issues, these petitions address the FERGs obligation
to exercise its jurisdiction to provide for the recovery of
strandable investments in any retail wheeling situations.
The outcome and timing of the FERC Orders on rehearing
are uncertain.

It is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these
proceedings, the timing thereof, or the amount, ifany, of
stranded costs that the Company would recover in a com-
petitive environment. The outcome of the state and fed-
eral regulatory proceedings could adversely affect the
Company's abiTity to apply Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) go. 71, "Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," which, pursuant
to SFAS No. 101, "Accounting for Discontinuation of
Application of SFAS No. 71," couM then require a signifi-
cant write-down of all or a portion of the Company's net
regulatory assets. Ifthe Company were unable to continue
to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 71 at December 31,
1996, the Company estimates that approximately $4.6
billion would have been required to be written off at
such time.

The Company s Service Territory
The Company's geographic location and the limited
electrical interconnections to Long Island serve to limit
the accessibility of its transmission grid to potential
competitors from off the system. However, the changing
utiTity regulatory environment has affected the Company
by requiring the Company to co-exist with state and
federally mandated competitors. These competitors are
non-utility generators (NUGS), NYPA and Municipal
Distribution Agencies (MDAs).

The Public UtiTityRegulatory Policies Act of 1978 (PURPA),
the goal of which is to reduce the United States'epen-
dency on foreign oil, to encourage energy conservation
and to promote diversification of the fuel supply, has neg-
atively impacted the Company through the encouragement
of the NUG industry. PURPA provides for the development
of a new class of electric generators which rely on either
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cogeneration technology or alternate fuels. Utilities are

obligated under PURPA to purchase the output of certain
of these generators, which are known as qualified facilities
(QFs).

In 1996, the Company lost sales to NUGs totaling 422

gigawatt-hours (GWh) representing a loss in electric
revenues net of fuel (net revenues) of approximately
$34 million, or 1.9% of the Company's net revenues.
In 1995, the Company lost sales to NUGs totaling
366 GWh or approximately $28 milUon or 1.5% of the
Company's net revenues.

The increase in lost net revenues resulted principally from
the completion of seven facilities that became commercially
operational during 1996 and the fullyear operation of the
IPP located at the State University of New York at Stony
Brook, NY. „The Company estimates that in 1997, sales

losses to NUGs willbe 429 GWh, or approximately 1.8%
of projected net revenues.

The Company believes that load losses due to NUGs

have stabilized. This belief is based on the fact that the
Company's customer load characteristics, which lack a

significant industrial base and related large thermal load,
willmitigate load loss and thereby make cogeneration
economically unattractive.

Additionally, as mentioned above, the Company is required
to purchase all the power offered by QFs which in 1996

approximated 218 megawatts (MW) and in early 1995

approximated 205 MW. The increase was the result of the
SUNY Stony Brook facilitygoing on line in mid 1995. The

Company estimates that purchases from QFs required by
federal and state law cost the Company $63 million and

$53 million in 1996 and 1995, respectively, more than it
would have cost had the Company generated this power.

QFs have the choice of pricing sales to the Company at „

either the PSGs published estimates of the Company's

long-range avoided costs (LRAC) or the Company's tariff
rates, which are modified from time to time, reflecting
the Company's actual avoided costs. Additionally, until
repealed in 1992, New York State law set a.minimum price
of six cents per kilowatt-hour (kWh) for utilitypurchases
of power from certain categories of QFs, considerably
above the Company's avoided cost. The six cent minimum
continues to apply to contracts entered into before June
1992. The Company believes that the repeal of the six
cent minimum, coupled with recent PSC updates which
resulted in lower LRAC estimates, has significantly reduced
the economic benefits of constructing new QFs within its
service territory.

The Company has also experienced a revenue loss as a
result of its policy of voluntarily providing wheeling
of NYPA power for economic development. The Company
estimates that in 1996 and 1995 NYPA power displaced
approximately 417 GWh and 429 GWh of annual energy

sales, respectively. Net revenue loss associated vtith these
volumes of sales is approximately $26 million, or 1.4% of
the Company's 1996 net revenues, and $30 miUion, or
1.6% of the Company's 1995 net revenues. Currently, the
potential loss of additional load is limited by conditions in
the Company's transmission agreements with NYPA.

A number of customer groups are seeking to hasten
consideration and implementation of fullretail competi-
tion; For example, an energy consultant has petitioned
the PSC, seeking alternate sources of power for Long
Island school districts. The County of Nassau has also

petitioned the PSC to authorize retail wheeling for all-
classes of electric customers in the county.

In addition, several towns and villages on Long Island are

investigating municipalization, in which customers form a

government-sponsored electric supply company. This is
one form of competition that is likely to increase as a

result of the National Energy Policy Act of 1992 (NEPA) ~

NEPA sought to increase economic efficiency in the
creation and distribution of power by relaxing restrictions
on the entry of new competitors to the wholesale electric
power market. NEPA does so by creating exempt whole-
sale generators that can sell power in wholesale markets
without the regulatory constraint placed on utiTity genera-
tors such as on the Company. NEPA also expanded the
FERGs authority to grant access to utiTity transmission
systems to all parties who seek wholesale wheeling for
wholesale competition. While it shouM be noted that the
FERGs position favoring stranded cost recovery from retail
turned wholesale customers willreduce utiTity risk from
municipalization, significant issues associated with the
removal of restrictions on wholesale transmission system
access have yet to be resolved.

There are numerous towns and villages in the Company's

service territory that are considering the formation of a

municipally owned and operated electric authority to
replace the services currently provided by the Company.

In 1995, Suffolk County issued a request for proposal
from suppliers for up to 300 MW of power which the
County wouM then sell to its residential and commercial
customers. The County has awarded the bid to two
off-Long Island suppliers and has requested the Company
to deliver the power. After the Company challenged
Suffolk County's eligibilityfor such service, the County
petitioned the FERC to order the Company to provide the
requested transmission service.

In December 1996, the FERC ordered the Company to pro-
vide transmission services to Suffolk County to the extent
necessary to accommodate proposed sales to customers to
which it was providing service on the date of enactment
of NEPA (this Order could provide Suffolk County with the
ability to import up to 200 MW of power on a daily basis).
The FERC reserved decision on the remaining 100 MW of
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Suffolk County's request until the County identifies the
ownership or control of distribution facilities that it
alleges qualifies it for a wheeling order to Suffolk County
customers who were not receiving service on the date of
NEPA's enactment. The Company may ask the FERC to
reconsider their decision once that decision becomes final,
which is not expected for several months. The FERC has

yet to determine the pricing of that service. As previously
noted, FERC Order 888 allows utilities to recover legiti-
mate, prudent and verifiable stranded costs associated
with wholesale trarmmission, including the circumstances
where full requirements customers become wholesale
transmission customers, such as where a municipality
establishes its own electric system.

The matters discussed above involve substantial social,
economic, legal, environmental and financial issues. The

Company is opposed to any proposal that merely shifts
costs from one group of customers to another, that fails to
enhance the provision of least-cost, efficiently-generated
electricity or that fails to provide the Company's share-
owners with an adequate return on and recovery of their
investment. The Company is unable to predict what
action, ifany, the PSC or the FERC may take regarding any
of these matters, or the impact on the Company's financial
position, cash flows or results of operations ifsome or all
of these matters are approved or implemented by the
appropriate regulatory authority.

Notwithstanding the outcome of the state or federal
regulatory proceedings, or any other state action, the
Company believes that, among other obligations, the State
has a contractual obligation to allow the Company to
recover its Shoreham-related assets.

The Company is subject to federal, state and local laws
and regulations dealing with air and water quality and
other environmental matters. Environmental matters may
expose the Company to potential liabilities which, in cer-
tain instances, may be imposed without regard to fault or
for historical activities which were lawful at the time they
occurred. The Company continually monitors its activities
in order to determine the impact of its activities on the
environment and to ensure compliance with various envi-
ronmental laws. Except as set forth below, no material
proceedings have been commenced or, to the knowledge
of the Company, are contemplated against the Company
with respect to any matter relating to the protection of
the environment.

The New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation (DEC) has required the Company and other
New York State utilities to investigate and, where neces-

sary, remediate their former manufactured gas plant (MGP)
sites. Currently, the Company is the owner of six pieces of
property on which the Company or certain of its predeces-

sor companies are believed to have produced manufac-
tured gas. Operations at these facilities in the late 1800's

and early 1900's may have resulted in the disposal of
certain waste products on these sites. Research is under-

way to determine the existence and nature of operations
and their relationship, ifany, to the Company or its
predecessor companies.

The Company has entered into discussions with the DEC

which may lead to the issuance of one or more
Administrative Consent Orders (ACO) regarding the man-

agement of environmental activities at these properties.
Although the exact amount of the Company's remediation
costs cannot yet be determined, based on the findings of
investigations at two of these six sites, estimates indicate
that it willcost approximately $51 million to remediate
all of these sites through the year 2005. Accordingly, the
Company has recorded a $35 million liabilityand a corre-

sponding regulatory asset to reflect its belief that the PSC

willprovide for the future recovery of these costs through
rates as it has for other New York State utilities. The

$35 million liabiTity reflects the present value of the
future stream of payments to investigate and remediate
these sites. The Company used a risk-free rate of 7.25%
to discount this obligation.

In December 1996, the Company filed a complaint in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York against 14 of the Company's insurers which
issued general. comprehensive liability (GCL) policies to the
Company. The Company is seeking recovery under the GCL

policies for the costs incurred to date and future costs
associated with the clean-up of the Company's former MGP

sites and Superfund sites for which the Company has been
named a potentially responsible party (PRP). The

Company is seeking a declaratory judgement that the
defendant insurers are bound by the terms of the GCL

policies, subject to the stated coverage limits, to reimburse
the Company for the remediation costs. The outcome of
this proceeding cannot yet be determined.

The Company has been notified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) that it is one of
many PRPs that may be liable for the remediation of three
licensed treatment, storage and disposal sites to which the
Company may have shipped waste products and which
have subsequently become environmentally contaminated.

At one site, located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and
operated by Metal Bank of America, the Company and
nine other PRPs, all of which are public utilities, have
entered into an ACO with the EPA to conduct a Remedial
Investigation and FeasibiTity Study (Ri/FS), which has
been completed and is currently being reviewed by the
EPA. Under a PRP participation agreement, the Company
is responsible for 8.2% of the costs associated with this
Rl/FS. The level of remediation required willbe deter-
mined when the EPA issues its decision, but based on



information available to date, the Company currently
anticipates that the total cost to remediate this site will.
be between $14 million and $30 million. The Company
has recorded a liabiTity of $1.1 million representing its
estimated share of the cost to remediate this site based
upon its 8.2'/o responsibility under the Rl/FS.

The Company has also been named a PRP for disposal sites
in Kansas City, Kansas, and Kansas City, Missouri. The two
sites were used by a company named PCB, Inc. from 1982
until 1987 for the storage, processing, and treatment of
electric equipment, dielectric oils and materials containing
PCBs., According to the EPA, the buildings and certain soil
areas outside the buildings are contaminated with PCB.

In 1994, the EPA requested certain of the large PRPs,

which include several other utilities, to form a group, sign
an ACO, and conduct a remediation program for the sites
under the Toxic Substances Control Act, or in the alterna-
tive, to perform a Superfund cleanup for the sites. The
EPA has provided the Company with documents indicating
that the Company was responsible for less than 1'/o of the
materials that were shipped to the Missouri site. The EPA

has not yet completed compiTing the documents for the
Kansas site. The Company intends to join,a PRP Group
which includes other utiTities, which has been organized
for the purpose of developing and implementing accept-
able remediation programs for the sites. The Company
is currently unable to determine its share of the cost to
remediate these sites.

In addition, the Company was notified that it is a PRP at a
Superfund site located in Farmingdale, New York. Portions
of the site are allegedly contaminated with PCBs, solvents
and metals. The Company was also notified by other PRPs

that it shouM be responsible for remediation expenses in
the amount of approximately $100,000 associated with
removing PCB-contaminated soils from a portion of the
site which formerly contained electric transformers. The
Company is unable to determine its share of costs of
remediation at this site.

During 1996, the Connecticut Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP) issued a modification to an ACO previously
issued in connection with an investigation of an electric
transmission cable located under the Long Island Sound
(Sound Cable) that is jointlyowned by the Company and
the Connecticut Light and Power Company (Owners).
The modified ACO requires the Owners to submit to the
DEP and DEC a series of reports and studies describing
cable system condition, operation and repair practices,
alternatives for cable improvements or replacement and
environmental impacts associated with leaks of fluid into
the Long Island Sound, which have occurred from time
to time. The Company continues to compile required
information and coordinate the activities necessary to
perform these studies and, at the present time, is unable
to determine the costs itwillincur to complete the

requirements of the modified ACO or to comply. with any
additional requirements.

Previously, the U.S. Attorney for the District of
Connecticut had commenced an investigation regarding
occasional releases of fiuid from the Sound Cable, as well
as associated operating and maintenance practices. The
Owners have provided the U.S. Attorney with all requested
documentation. The Company believes that all activities
associated with the response to occasional releases from
the Sound Cable were consistent'with legal and regulatory

. requirements.

In addition, during 1996 the Long Island Soundkeeper
Fund, a non-profit organization, filed a suit against the
Owners of the Sound Cable in Federal District Court in
Connecticut alleging that the Sound Cable fluid leaks
constitute unpermitted discharges of poHutants in
violation of the Clean Water Act (CWA) and that such
pollutants present a threat to the environment and public
health. The suit seeks, among other things, injunctive
relief prohibiting the Owners from continuing to operate
the Sound Cable in alleged violation of the CWA and civil
penalties of $25,000 per day for each violation from each
of the Owners.

In December 1996, a barge, owned and operated by a third
party, dropped anchor, causing extensive damage to the
Sound Cable and a release of dielectric fluid into the Long
Island Sound. Temporary clamps and leak abaters have
been placed on the cables which have stopped the leaks.
Permanent repairs are expected to be undertaken in the
late spring of 1997. The preliminary estimate of the cost
of these repairs is $15 million. The Company intends to
seek recovery from third parties for all costs incurred by
the Company as a result of this incident. The timing and
amount of recovery, ifany, cannot yet be determined. In
addition, the Owners maintain insurance coverage for the
Sound Cable which the Company believes willbe sufficient
to cover any repair costs. In any event, costs not reim-
bursed by a third party or not covered by insurmce willbe
shared equally by the Owners.

The Company believes that none of the environmental
matters, discussed above, willhave a material adverse

impact on the Company's financial position, cash flows or
results of operations. In addition, the Company believes
that all significant costs incurred with respect to environ-
mental investigation and remediation activities, not recov-
erable from insurance carriers, willbe recoverable through
rates.

The Company's 1996 Demand Side Management (DSM) Plan
focused on the pursuit of energy efficiency and peak load
reduction in a way that had minimal impact on electric
rate increases. To assure the success of this strategy, the
Company implemented a balanced and cost-effective mix
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of DSM programs that continued to represent a limited
reliance on broad-based rebates and a concentrated
emphasis on programs that provided education and infor-
mation, targeted business development, improved the
efficiency of the Company's faciTities, induced market
transformation and provided financing for energy efficiency.
The Company was successful in meeting the PSC energy
penalty threshold of 26.7 GWh (80% of 33.3 GWh goal) at
a cost less than that provided for in electric rates.

In 1997, the Company plans to continue this strategy
with an increased emphasis on programs which facilitate
the retention, attraction and expansion of major commer-
cial/industrial customers. Specifically these programs will
provide incentives to encourage companies to invest in
energy-efficiency as a means to remain, expand or relocate
to Long I'sland. Overall, they willhelp to improve the
economic climate on Long Island as well as the Company's

competitiveness as an energy provider. The 1997 Plan
targets an annualized energy savings of 28.7 GWh. The

Company believes that it willmeet the target and avoid
any earnings penalty.

R r i
Rahumh
This report contains statements which, to the extent they
are not recitations of historical fact, constitute forward-
looking statements" within the meaning of the Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (Reform Act). In this
respect, the words "estimate," "project," "anticipate,"
"expect," "intend," "believe" and similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Allsuch
forward-looking statements are intended to be subject to
the safe harbor protection provided by the Reform Act.
A number of important factors affecting the Company's
business and financial results could cause actual results to
differ materially from those stated in the forward-looking
statements. Those factors include the proposed merger
with Brooklyn Union and a possible transaction with LIPA
as discussed under the heading "Merger Agreement with
The Brooklyn Union Gas Company," state and federal
regulatory rate proceedings, competition, and certain
environmental matters each as discussed herein.

Additional information respecting revenues, expenses,
electric and gas operating income and operations data
and balance sheet information for the last five years is
provided in Tables 1 through 11 of Selected Financial
Data. Information with regard to the Company's business
segments for the last three years is provided in Note 12
of Notes to Financial Statements.



Financial Statements

Balance Sheet
Assets at December 31

UtilityPlant
Hectric
Gas

Common

Construction work in progress
Nuclear fuel in rocess and in reactor

Less - Accumuhted depreciation and amortization

Total Net UtiTityPlant

(In thousands ofdollars)

1996 1995

$ 3,882,297 $ 3,786,540
1,154,543 1,086,145

260,268 244,828
112,184 100,521

15,454 16,456
5,424,746 5,234,490
1,729,576 1,639,492

3,695,170 3,594,998

Regulatory Assets
Base financial component fess accumulated

amortization of $757,282 and $656,311)
Rate moderation component
Shoreham post-settlement costs
Shoreham nuclear fuel
Unamortized cost of issuing securities
Postretirement benefits other than pensions
Regulatory tax asset

Other

3,281,548
402,213
991,795

69,113
194,151
360,842

1,772,778
199,879

3,382,519
383,086
968,999

71,244
222,567
383,642

1,802,383
229,809

Total Regulatory Assets

NonutilityProperty and Other Investments

7,272,319 7,444,249

18,597 16,030

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Special deposits
Customer accounts receivable fess allowance

for doubtful accounts of $25,000 and $24,676)
LRPP receivable
Other accounts receivable
Accrued unbilled revenues
Materials and supplies at average cost
Fuel oil at average cost
Gas in storage at average cost
Deferred tax asset

Prepayments and other current assets

279,993
38,266

255,801

65,764
169,712
55,789
53,941
73,562

145,205
8,569

351,453
63,412

282,218
74,281

107,387
184,440

63,595
32,090
53,076

191,000
8,986

Total Current Assets

Deferred Charges

Total Assets

See Notes to Rnancial Statements.

1,146,602 1,411,938

76,991 60,382

$ 12,209,679 $ 12,527,597



(In thousands of dollars)

Capitalization and Liabilities at December 31 1996 1995

Capitalization
Long-tenn debt
Unamortized discount on debt

$ 4,471,675 $ 4,722,675
14,903 . 16,075

Preferred stock - redemption required
Preferred stock - no redemption 'required

Total Preferred Stock

Common stock
Premium on capital stock

Capital stock expense
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost

Total Common Shareowners'quity

Total Capitalization

Regulatory LiabiMes
Regulatory liabilitycomponent
1989 Settlement credits
Regulatory tax liabiTity
Other

Total Regulatory Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Current redemption requirements of preferred stock
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

LRPP payable
Accrued taxes (including federal income

tax of $25,884 and $28,736)
Accrued interest
Dividends payable
Class Settlement
Customer deposits

Total Current Liabilities

4,456,772
638,500

63,664

702,164

603,921
1,127,971

(49,330)
840,867

(60)

2,523,369

7,682,305

198,398
127,442
102,887
146,852

575,579

251,000
1,050

289,141
40,499

63,640
160,615

58,378
55,833
29,471

949,627

4,706,600
639,550

63,934

703,484

598,277
1,114,508

(50,751)
790,919

2,452,953

7,863,037

277,757
136,655
116,060
132,891

663,363

415,000
4,800

260,879
17,240

60,498
158,325

57,899
45,833
29,547

1,050,021

Deferred Credits
Deferred federal income tax
Class Settlement
Other

2,442,606 2,337,732
98,497 129,809

32,105 34,499

Total Deferred Credits

Operating Reserves
Pensions and other postretirement benefits
Claims and damages

Total Operating Reserves

Commitments and Contingencies

2,573,208

381,996
46,964

428,960

2,502,040

396,490
52,646

449,136

Total Capitalization and Liabilities

See Notes to Rnancial Statements.

$ 12,209,679 $ 12,527,597



Statement of Income (In thousands ofdollars except per share amounts)

For year ended December 31

Revenues
Hectric
Gas

Total Revenues

1996

$ 2,466,435
684,260

3,150,695

1995 1994

$ 2,484,014 $ 2,481,637
591,114 585,670

3,075,128 3,067,307

Operating Expenses
Operations —fuel and purchased power
Operations —other
Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Base financial component amortization
Rate moderation component amortization
Regulatory liabilitycomponent amortization
1989 Settlement credits amortization
Other regulatory amortization
Operating taxes
Federal income tax - current
Federal income tax —deferred and other

963,251
381,076
118,135
153,925
100,971
(24,232)
(79,359)

(9,214)
127,288
472,076

42,197
168,000

834,979
383,238
128,155
145,357
100,971

21,933

(79,359)
(9,214)

161,605
447,507

14,596
193,742

847,986
406,014
134,640
130,664
100,971
197,656

(79,359)
(9,214)
4,328

406,895
10,784

170,997
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
2,414,114

736,581

2,343,510 2,322,362

731,618 744,945

Other Income and (Deductions)
Rate modemtion component carrying charges
Other income and deductions
Class Settlement
Allowance for other funds used during construction
Federal income tax —deferred and other

25,259
19,197

(20,772)
2,888

940

25,274
34,400

(21,669)'
2,898 <c

2,800,

32.321
35,343

(22,730)
2,716
5,069

Total Other Income and (Deductions)

Income Before Interest Charges

Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt
Other interest
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction

Total Interest Charges

Net Income
Preferred stock dividend requirements

Earnings for Common Stock

Average Common Shares Outstanding (000)

Earnings per Common Share

Dividends Declared per Common Share

See Notes to Flnannal Statements.

27,512

764,093

384,198
67,130
(3,699)

447,629

316,464
52,216

$ ,264,248

120,361

$ 2.20

$ 1.78

- 43,703 " 52,719

775,321, 797,664

412,512 437,751
63,461 "-, 62,345

(3,938) '=- (4,284)

472,035 495,812

303,286 301,852
52,620 53,020

$ 250,666 $ 248,832

119,195 '115,880

$ 2.10 $ 2.15

$ 1.78 $ 1.78



Statement of Cash Flows (In thousands ofdollars)

For year ended December 31

Operating Activities
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Base financial component amortization
Rate moderation component amortization
Regulatory liabiTitycomponent amortization
1989 Settlement credits amortization
Other regulatory amortization
Rate moderation component carrying charges

Amortization of cost of issuing and redeeming securities

Class Settlement
Provision for doubtful accounts

Federal income tax —deferred and other
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabiTities
Accounts receivable
Class Settlement
Accrued unbilled revenues

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Other

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Construction and nuclear fuel expenditures
Shoreham post-settlement costs

Other investing activities

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of securities
Redemption of securities
Common stock dividends paid
Preferred stock dividends paid
Other financing activities

Net Cash Used in Financin Activities
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1

Net (Decrease) Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31

Interest paid, before reduction for the allowance
for borrowed funds used during construction

Federal income tax paid

See Notes to Rnancial Statements.

1996

$ 316,464

153,925
100,971
(24,232)
(79,359)

(9,214)
127,288
(25,259)
34,611
20,772
23,119

167,060
66,624

69,215
(42,084)
14,728
28,258

(50,574)

892,313

(239,896)
(51,722)

(4,806)

(296,424)

18,837
(419,800)
(213,753)

(52,264)
(369)

667,349
$ (71,460)

$ 351,453
(71,460)

$ 279,993

$ 404,663

$ 45,050

1995

$ 303,286

145,357
100,971

21,933

(79,359)
(9,214)

161,605

(25,274)
39,589
21,669
17;751

190,942
61,576

(67,213)
(33,464)
(20,061)
19,100

(77,194)

772,000

(243,586)
(70,589)

8,019

(306,156)

68,726

(104,800)
(211,630)
(52,667)

529

299,842

$ 166,002

$ 185,451
166,002

$ 351,453

$ 427,988

$ 14,200

1994

$ 301,852

130,664
100,971
197,656

(79,359)
(9,214)
4,328

(32,321)
46,237
22,730
19,542

165,928
46,531

(17,353)
(30,235)

5,663

(44,598)
6,727

835,749

(276,954)
(167,367)

(1,349)

(445,670)

449,434
(639,858)
(205,086)

(52,927)
(4,723)

453,160)
$ (63,081)

$ 248,532

(63,081)

$ 185,451

$ 446,340

$ 10,780
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Statement of Retained Earnings (In thousands ofdollars)

1996 1995 1994

Balance at January 1

Net income for the ear
$ 790,919 $ 752,480 $ 711,432

316,464 303,286 301,852
1,107,383 1,055,766 1,013,284

Deductions
Cash dividends declared on common stock
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock
Other

214,255
52,240

21

212,181
52,647

19

207,794
53,046

(36)

Balance at December 31

See Notes to Rnanrial Statements.

$ 840,867 $ 790,919 $ 752,480

Statement of Capitalization (In thousands of dollars)

At December 31 1996 1995 1996 1995

Common Shareowners'quity
Common stock, $5.00 par value
Premium on capital stock
Capital stock expense
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost

Total Common Shareowners'quity

Shares Issued

120,784,277 119,655,441 $ 603,921 $ 598,277
1,127,971 1,114,508

(49,330) (50,751)
840,867 790,919

3,485 (60)

2,523,369 2,452,953

Preferred Stock - Redemption Required
Par value $100 per share

7.40'/o Series L
8.50'/0 Series R

7.66% Series CC

Less - Sinking fund requirement

161,000

570,000

171,500
37,500

570,000

16,100

57,000
1,050

17,150
3,750

57,000
4,800

72,050 73,100

Par value $ 25 per share
7.95% Series AA
$1.67 Series GG

$1.95 Series NN

7.05% Series QQ

6.875% Series UU

14,520,000
880,000

1,554,000
3,464,000
2,240,000

14,520,000
880,000

1,554,000
3,464,000
2,240,000

363,000
22,000
38,850
86,600
56,000

363,000
22,000
38,850
86,600
56,000

Total Preferred Stock —Redemption Required

566,450 566,450

638,500 639,550

Preferred Stock —No Redemption Required
Par value $100 per share

5.00'/0 Series B

4.25% Series D

4.35% Series E

4.35% Series P

5 1/8% Series H
5 3/4% Series I — Convertible

100,000
70,000

200,000
50,000

200,000
16,637

100,000
70,000

200,000
50,000

200,000
19,336

10,000
7,000

20,000
5,000

20,000
1,664

10,000
7,000

20,000
5,000

20,000
1,934

Total Preferred Stock - No Redemption Required

Total Preferred Stock

63,664 63,934

$ 702,164 $ 703,484



Statement of Capitalization (continued) (In thousands ofdollars)

At December 31

General and Refunding Bonds

Maturity Interest Rate Series 1996 1995

Total General and Refunding Bonds

Debentures

Total Debentures

Authority Financing Notes
industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Pollution Control Revenue Bonds

Electric Facilities Revenue Bonds

Total Authority Financing Notes

Unamortized Discount on Debt

Total
Less Current Maturities

Total I,ong-Term Debt

May 1, 1996

February 15, 1997

April 15, 1998

May 15, 1999

April 15, 2004

May 15, 2006

July 15, 2008

May 1, 2021

July 1, 2024

July 15, 1999

January 15, 2000

July 15, 2001

March 15, 2003

March 1, 2004
June 1, 2005

March 1, 2007

July 15, 2019
November 1, 2022

March 15, 2023

December 1, 2006

December 1, 2006
December 1, 2009

October 1, 2012
March 1, 2016

September 1, 2019

June 1, 2020
December 1, 2020
February 1, 2022

August 1, 2022
November 1, 2023

November 1, 2023
October 1, 2024

August 1, 2025

8 3/4%
8 3/4%
7 5/8%

7 85%

8 5/8%
8.50'/o

7.90'/o

9 3/4%
9 5/8%

7.30%
7.3(Plo

6.25%
7.05%
7.00%

7.125%
7.50'/o

8.90'/o

9.00'/o

8.20'/o

7.50%

7.50%
7.80'/o

8 1/4%
3.25%

7.15%
7.15%
7 15%

7 15%
6.9(P/o

4.05%
4.00'/o

4.00'/o
4.00'/o

1976 A,B

1976 A
1979 B

1982
1985 A,B

1989 A,B
.1990 A
1991 A
1992 A,B
1992 C,D

1993 A
1993 B

1994 A
1995 A

250,000
100,000
56,000

185,000
75,000
80,000

415,000
375,000

1,536,000

397,000
36,000

145,000
150,000

59,000
200,000
142,000
420,000
451,000
270,000

2,270,000

2,000

28,375
19,100
17,200

150,000

100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000

916,675

(14,903)

4,707,772
251,000

4,456,772

415,000
250,000
100,000

56,000
185,000

75,000
80,000

415,000
375,000

1,951,000

397,000
36,000

145,000
150,000

59,000
200,000
142,000
420,000
451,000
270,000

2,270,000

2,000

28,375
19,100
17,200

150,000

100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000

50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000

916,675

(16,075)

5,121,600
415,000

4,706,600

Total Capitalization

See Notes to Finanrial Statements.

$ 7,682,305 $ 7,863,037



Notes to Financial Statements
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Long Island Lighting Company (Company) was incorporated
in 1910 under the Transportation Corporations Law of the
State of New York and supplies electric and gas service
in Nassau and Suffolk Counties and to the Rockaway
Peninsula in Queens County, all on Long Island, New York.
The Company's service territory covers an area'of approxi-
mately 1,230 square miles. The population of the senrice
area, according to the Company's 1996 estimate, is about
2.7 million persons, including approximately 98,000
persons who reside in Queens County within the City of
New York.

The Company serves approximately 1.03 milUon electric
customers of which approximately 921,000 are residentiaL
The Company receives approximately 49% of its electric
revenues from residential customers, 48% from commer-
cial/industrial customers and the balance from sales to
other utilities and public authorities. The Company also
serves approximately 460,000 gas customers, 412,000
of which are residential, accounting for 61% of the gas
revenues, with the balance of the gas revenues made up
by the commercial/industrial customers and off-system
sales.

The Company's geographic location and the limited
electrical interconnections to Long Island serve to limit
the accessibility of the transmission grid to potential
competitors from off the system. In addition, the
Company does not expect any new major independent
power producers (IPPs) or cogenerators to be built on
Long Island in the foreseeable future. One of the reasons

supporting this conclusion is based on the Company's
belief that the composition and distribution of the
Company's remaining commercial and industrial customers
would make it difficultfor large electric projects to oper-
ate economically. Furthermore, under federal law, the
Company is required to buy energy from qualified produc-
ers at the Company's avoided cost. Current tong-range
avoided cost estimates for the Company have significantly
reduced the economic advantage to entrepreneurs seeking
to compete with the Company and with existing IPPs. For
a further discussion of the competitive issues facing the
Company, see Note 1'J.

Emuhtim
The Company's accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the Uniform Systems of Accounts
prescribed by the Public Service Commission of the State
of New York (PSC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC). Its financial statements react the
ratemaking policies and actions of these commissions in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
for rate-regulated enterprises.

General

The Company is subject to the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71,
"Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation".
This statement recognizes the economic ability of regula-
tors, through the ratemaking process, to create future
economic benefits and obligations affecting rate-regulated
companies. Accordingly, the Company records these
future economic benefits and obligations as regulatory,
assets and regulatory liabiTities.

Reguhtory assets represent probable future revenues
associated with previously incurred costs that are expect-
ed to be recovered from customers. Regulatory liabilities
represent probable future reductions in revenues associated
with amounts that are expected to be refunded to
customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory
assets net of regulatory liabilities amounted to approxi-
mately $6.7 billion and $6.8 billion at December 31, 1996
and 1995, respectively.

In order for a rate-regulated entity to continue to apply
the provisions of SFAS No. 71, it must continue to meet
the following three criteria: (i) the enterprise's rates
for regulated services provided to its customers must be
established by an independent third-party regulator; (ii)
the regulated rates must be designed to recover the specific
enterprise's costs of providing the regulated services; and
(iii) in view of the demand for the regulated services and
the level of competition, it is reasonable to assume that
rates set at levels that willrecover the enterprise's costs
can be charged to and collected from customers.

Based upon the Company's evaluation of the three criteria
discussed above in relation to its operations, the effect
of competition on its ability to recover its costs, including
its allowed return on common equity and the regulatory
environment in which the Company operates, the
Company believes that SFAS No. 71 continues to apply to
the Company's electric and gas operations. The Company
formed its conclusion based upon several factors including:
(i) the Company's continuing abiTity to earn its allowed
return on common equity for both its electric and gas
operations; and (ii) the PSC's continued commitment to
the Company's full recovery of the Shoreham Nuclear
Power Station (Shoreham) related assets and aH other
prudently incurred costs.

Notwithstanding the above, rate regulation is undergoing
significant change as regulators an'd customers seek lower
prices for electric and gas service. As discussed more fully
in Note 11, the PSC has made a decision in the Competitive
Opportunities Proceedings to transition the electric indus-
try to a wholesale power market in early 1997 followed by
the introduction of retail access for all customers by early
1998. In the event that regulation significantly changes
the opportunity for the Company to recover its costs in
the future, all or a portion of the Company's operations
may no longer meet the criteria discussed above. In
that event, a significant write-down of all or a portion



of the Cotapany's existing regulatory assets and liabilities
could result. For additional information respecting the
Company's Shoreham-related assets, see below and
Notes 2, 3 and 11.

In 1996, the Company adopted SFAS No. 121, "Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to be Disposed Of" which amends SFAS No.
71. Under SFAS No. 121, costs which were capitalized
in accordance with regulatory practices, because it was

probable that future recovery would be allowed by the
regulator, must be charged against current period earnings,
ifit appears that the criterion for capitalization no longer
applies. The carrying amount of such assets would be
reduced by amounts for which recovery is unlikely. SFAS

No. 121 also provides for the restoration of previously
disallowed costs that are subsequently allowed by a regu-
lator. With respect to assets recognized under SFAS No.
71 and all other long-lived assets, the adoption of SFAS

No. 121 did not have an effect on the Company's financial
position, cash flows or results of operations. However, if
the Company had been unable to continue to apply the
provisions of SFAS No. 71, at December 31, 1996, the
Company estimates that approximately $4.6 billion would
have been vnitten off at such time.

Discussed below are the Company's significant regulatory
assets and regulatory liabilities.

Base Financial Component and Rate Moderation
Component

Pursuant to the 1989 Settlement, the Company recorded a

regulatory asset known as the Financial. Resource Asset
(FRA). The FRA is designed to provide the Company with
sufficient cash flows to assure its financial recovery. The
FRA has two components, the Base Financial Component
(BFC) and the Rate Moderation Component (RMC).

The BFC represents the present value of the future
net-after-tax cash flows which the Rate Moderation
Agreement (RMA), one of the constituent documents of
the 1989 Settlement, provided the Company for its finan-
cial recovery. The BFC was granted rate base treatment
under the terms of the RMA and is included in the
Company's revenue requirements through an amortization
included in rates over a forty-year period on a straight-
line basis which began July 1, 1989.

The RMC refiects the difference between the Company's
revenue requirements under conventional ratemaking
and the revenues resulting from the implementation
of the rate moderation plan provided for in the RMA. The
RMC is currently adjusted, on a monthly basis, for the
Company's share of certain Nine Mile Point Nuclear Power
Station, Unit 2 (NMP2) operations and maintenance

'xpenses, fuel credits resulting from the Company's elec-
tric fuel cost adjustment clause and gross receipts tax
adjustments related to the FRA. For a further discussion
of the 1989 Settlement and FRA, see Notes 2 and 3.

Shoreham Post-Settlement Costs

Consists of Shoreham decommissioning costs, fuel disposal
costs, payments-in-lieu-of-taxes, carrying charges and
other costs. These costs are being capitalized and amor-
tized and recovered through rates over a forty-year period
on a straight-line remaining life basis which began July 1,

1989. For a further discussion of Shoreham post-settle-
ment costs, see Note 2.

Shoreham Nuclear Fuel
Principally reflects the unamortized portion of Shoreham
nuclear fuel which was reclassified from Nuclear Fuel in
Process and in Reactor at the time of the 1989 Settlement.
This amount is being amortized and recovered through
rates over a forty-year period on a straight-line remaining
life basis which began July 1, 1989.

Unamortized Cost of Issuing Securities
Represents the unamortized premiums or discounts and
expenses related to the issues of long-term debt that have
been retired prior to maturity and the costs associated
with the early redemption of those issues. In addition,
this balance includes the unamortized capital stock
expense and redemption costs related to certain series

of preferred stock that have been refinanced. These

costs are amortized and recovered through rates over the
shorter of the life of the redeemed issue or the new issue
as provided by the PSC.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Company defers as a regulatory asset the difference
between postretirement benefit expense recorded in
accordance with SFAS No. 106, "Employers'ccounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions", and
postretirement benefit expense reflected in current rates.
Pursuant to a PSC order, the ongoing annual SFAS No. 106
benefit expense must be phased into and fullyreflected
in rates by November 30, 1997, with the accumulated
deferred asset being recovered in rates over the next
fifteen-year period. For a further discussion of SFAS No.
106, see Note 8.

Regulatory Tax Asset and Regulatory Tax Liability
The Company has recorded a regulatory tax asset for
amounts that it willcollect in future rates for the portion
of its deferred tax liabilitythat has not yet been recog-
nized for ratemaking purposes. The regulatory tax asset
is comprised principally of the tax effect of the difference
in the cost basis of the BFC for financial and tax reporting
purposes, depreciation differences not normalized and the
allowance for equity funds used during construction.

The regulatory tax liability is primarily attributable
to deferred taxes previously recognized at rates higher
than current enacted tax law, unamortized investment
tax credits and tax credit carryforwards.

Regulatory LiabilityComponent
Pursuant to the 1989 Settlement, certain tax benefits
attributable to the Shoreham abandonment are to be
shared between electric ratepayers and shareowners.



A regulatory liability,of approximately $794 million
was recorded iri June 1989 to preserve an amount
equivalent to the customer tax benefits attributable to the
Shoreham abandonment. This amount is being amortized
over a ten-year period on a straight-line basis which
began July 1, 1989.

r

Represents the unamortized portion of an adjustment
of the book write-off to the negotiated 1989 Settlement
amount. A portion of this amount is being amortized over
a ten-year period which began on July 1, 1989. The
remaining portion is not currently being recognized for
ratemaking purposes.

lltBitxLhah
Additions to and replacements of utilityplant are
capitalized at original cost, which includes material, labor,
indirect costs associated with an addition or replacement
and an allowance for the cost of funds used during con-
struction. The cost of renewals and betterments relating
to units of property is added to utilityplant. The cost of
property replaced, retired or otherwise disposed of is
deducted from utiTityplant and, generally, together with
dismantling costs less any salvage, is charged to accumu-
lated depreciation. The cost of repairs and minor renewals
is charged to maintenance expense. Mass properties (such
as poles, wire and meters) are accounted for on an average
unit cost basis by year of installation.

The Uniform Systems of Accounts defines the Allowance
For Funds Used During Construction (AFC) as the net cost
of borrowed funds used for construction purposes and a
reasonable rate of return upon the utiTity's equity when so

used. AFC is not an item of current cash income. AFC is
computed monthly using a rate permitted by the FERC on
a portion of construction work in progress. The average
annual AFC rate, without giving effect to compounding,
was 9.02%, 9.36% and 9.18% for the years 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively.

Rmmhtim
The provisions for depreciation result from the application
of straight-line rates to the original cost, by groups, of
depreciable properties in service. The rates are determined
by age-life studies performed annually on depreciable
properties. Depreciation for electric properties was
equivalent to approximately 3 0% of respective average
depreciable plant costs for each of the years 1996, 1995

. and 1994. Depreciation for gas properties was equivalent
to approximately 2.0% of respective average depreciable
plant costs for each of the years 1996, 1995 and 1994.

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased. The

carrying amount approximates fair value because of the
short maturity of these investments.

Represents the current portion of amounts recoverable
from or due to ratepayers that result from the revenue
and expense reconciliations, performance-based incentives
and associated carrying charges as established under the
LILCO Ratemaking and Performance Plan (LRPP). For

further discussion of the LRPP, see Note 3.

The fair values for the Company's long-term debt and
redeemable preferred stock are based on quoted market
prices, where available. The fair values for all other long-
term debt and redeemable preferred stock are estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses which is based upon
the Company's current incremental borrowing rate for
similar types of securities.

1hzmuas
Revenues are based on cycle billings rendered to certain
customers monthly and others bi-monthly. The Company
also accrues electric and gas revenues for services
rendered to customers but not billed at month-end.

The Company's electric rate structure, as discussed
in Note 3, provides for a revenue reconciliation mechanism
which eliminates the impact on earnings of experiencing
electric sales that are above or below the levels refiected
in rates.

The Company's gas rate structure provides for a weather
normalization clause which reduces the impact on rev-
enues of experiencing weather which is warmer or colder
than normaL

The Company's electric and gas tariffs include fuel cost
adjustment (FCA) clauses which provide for the disposition'fthe difference between actual fuel costs and the fuel
costs allowed in the Company's base tariff rates (base fuel
costs). The Company defers these differences to future
periods in which they willbe billed or credited to
customers, except for base electric fuel costs in excess

of actual electric fuel costs, which are currently credited
to the RMC as incurred.

The Company provides deferred federal income tax with
respect to certain items of income and expense that are
reported in different years for federal income tax purposes
and financial statement purposes and with respect to
items with different bases for financial and tax reporting
purposes, as discussed in Note 9.



The Company defers the benefit of 60'io of pre-1982 gas

and pre-1983 electric and 100% of all other investment
tax credits, with respect to regulated properties, when
realized on its tax returns. Accumulated deferred invest-
ment tax credits are amortized ratably over the lives of
the related properties.

For ratemaking purposes, the Company provides deferred
federal income tax with respect to certain differences
between income before income tax for financial reporting
purposes and taxable income for federal income tax
purposes. Also, certain accumulated deferred federal
income tax is deducted from rate base and amortized or
otherwise applied as a reduction in federal income tax
expense in future years.

r 'ms ndD

Losses arising from claims against the Company, including
workers'ompensation claims, property damage, extraordi-
nary storm costs and general liabilityclaims, are partially
self-insured. Reserves for these claims and damages are

based on, among other things, experience, risk of loss and
the ratemaking practices of the PSC. Extraordinary storm
losses incurred by the Company are partially insured by
various commercial insurance carrier. These insurance
carriers provide partial insurance coverage for individual
storm losses to the Company's transmission and distribu-
tion system between $15 million and $25 million. Storm

'osseswhich are outside of this range are self-insured by
the Company.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified in the
financial statements to conform with the current year
presentation.

Note 2. The 1989 Settlement

In February 1989, the Company and the State of New York
entered into the 1989 Settlement resolving certain issues
relating to the Company and providing, among other
matters, for the financial recovery of the Company and
for the transfer of Shoreham to the Long Island Power

Authority (LIPA), an agency of the State of New York,
for its subsequent decommissioning.

Upon the effectiveness of the 1989 Settlement, in June
1989, the Company recorded the FRA on its Balance Sheet

and the retirement of its investment of approximately
$4.2 billion, principally in Shoreham. The FRA has two
components, the BFC and the RMC. For a further discus-

sion of the FRA, see Note 1.

In February 1992, the Company transferred ownership
of Shoreham to LIPA. Pursuant to the 1989 Settlement,
the Company was required to reimburse LIPA for all of its
costs associated with the decommissioning of Shoreham.
Effective May 1, 1995, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission

(NRC) terminated LIPA's possession-only license for
Shoreham. The termination signified the NRGs approval
that decommissioning was complete and that the site
is suitable for unrestricted use. At December 31, 1996,
Shoreham post-settlement costs totaled approximately
$1.103 billion, consisting of $536 million of property taxes

and payments-in-lieu-of-taxes, and $567 million of decom-

missioning costs, fuel. disposal costs and all other costs

incurred at Shoreham after June 30, 1989.

The PSC has determined that all costs associated
with Shoreham which are prudently incurred by the
Company subsequent to the effectiveness of the 1989
Settlement are decommissioning costs. The RMA

provides for the recovery of such costs through electric
rates over the balance of a forty-year period ending
2029.

Note 3. Rate Matters

Ehdrh
In 1995, the Company submitted a compliance filing
requesting that the PSC extend the provisions of its 1995

electric rate order, discussed below, through November 30,
1996. This filing was updated by the Company in August
1996 and approved by the PSC in January 1997.

During 1996, the PSC instituted numerous initiatives
intended to lower electric rates on Long Island. The

Company shares the PSGs concern regarding electric rate
levels and is prepared to assist the PSC in pursuing any
reasonable opportunity to reduce electric rates.
The initiatives instituted were as follows:

~ An Order to Show Cause, issued in February 1996,
to examine various opportunities to reduce the
Company's electric rates;

~ An Order, issued in April1996, expanding the scope
of the Order to Show Cause proceeding in an effort
to provide "immediate and substantial rate relief."
This order directed the Company to file financial and
other information sufficient to provide a legal basis
for setting new rates for both the single rate year
(1997) and the three-year period 1997 through
1999; and

~ An Order, issued in July 1996, to institute an expe-
dited temporary rate phase in the Order to Show
Cause proceeding to be conducted in parallel with
the ongoing phase concerning permanent rates.



The Order issued in July requested that interested parties
file testimony and exhibits sufficient to provide a basis for
the PSC to decide whether the Company's electric rates
should be made temporary and, ifso, the proper level of
such temporary rates. The Staff of the PSC (Staff), in
response to this Order, recommended that the Company's
rates be reduced on a temporary basis by 4.2% effective
October 1, 1996, until the permanent rate case is decided.
In its filing, the Company sought to demonstrate that
current electric rate levels were appropriate and that
there was no justification for reducing them. Although
evidentiary hearings on the Company's, Staff's and other
interested partied submissions were subsequently held on
an expedited basis to enable the PSC to render a decision
on the Company's rates, as of the date of this report, the
PSC has yet to take any action.

In September 1996, the Company completed the fiUng of a
multi-year rate plan (Plan) in compliance with the April
1996 Order. Major elements of the Plan include: (i) a base
rate freeze for the three-year period December 1, 1996
through November 30, 1999; (ii) an allowed return on
common equity of 11.0% through the term of the Plan
with the Company fullyretaining all earnings up to
12.66%, and sharing with the customer any eanungs
above 12.66%; (iii) the continuation of existing LRPP

revenue and expense reconciliation mechanisms and
performance incentive programs; (iv) crediting all net
proceeds from the Shoreham property tax litigation to the
RMC to reduce its bahnce; and (v) a mechanism to fully
recover any outstanding RMC balance at the end of the
1999 rate year through inclusion in the Fuel Cost

Adjustment (FCA), over a two-year period.

1995 Electric Rate Order

The basis of the 1995 Order included mininuzing future
electric rate increases while continuing to provide for the
recovery of the Company's regulatory assets and retaining
consistency with the RMA's objective of restoring the
Company to financial health. The 1995 Order, which
became effective December 1, 1994, froze base electric
rates, reduced the Company's aBowed return on common
equity from 11.6% to 11.0% and modified or eliminated
certain performance-based incentives, as discussed below.

The LRPP, originally approved by the PSC in November
1991, contained three major components: (i) revenue
reconciTiation; (ii) expense attrition and reconciTiation;
and (iii) performance-based incentives. In the 1995 Order,

the PSC continued the three major components of the
LRPP with modifications to the expense attrition and
reconciTiation mechanism and the performance-based
incentives. The revenue reconciTiation mechanism remains
unchanged.

Revenue reconciliation provides a mechanism that elimi-
nates the impact of experiencing sales that are above or
below adjudicated levels by providing a fixed annual net
margin level (defined as sales revenues, net of fuel
expenses and gross receipts taxes). The difference

between actual and adjudicated net margin levels are
deferred on a monthly basis during the rate year.

The expense attrition and reconc Tiiation component
permits the Company to make adjustments for certain
expenses recognizing that these cost increases are
unavoidable due to infhtion and changes outside the
control of the Company. Pursuant to the 1995 Order, the
Company is permitted to reconcile expenses for property
taxes only, whereas under the original LRPP the Company
was able to reconcile expenses for wage rates, property
taxes, interest costs and demand side management (DSM)
COStS.

The original LRPP had also provided for the deferral
and amortization of certain cost variances for enhanced
reliabiTity, production operations and maintenance
expenses and the application of an inflation index to
other expenses. Under the 1995 Order, these deferrals
have been eliminated and any unamortized balances were
credited to the RMC during 1995.

The modified performance-based incentive programs
include the DSM program, the customer service perfor-
mance program and the transmission and distribution
reliabiTity program. Under these revised programs, the
Company is subject to a maximum penalty of 38 basis
points of the aHowed return on common equity and can
earn up to 4 basis points under the customer service
program. This 4 basis point incentive can only be used
to offset a penalty under the transmission and distribu-
tion reliability program. Under the original LRPP, the
Company was allowed to earn up to 40 basis points or for-
feit up to 18 basis points under these incentive programs.

The partial pass-through fuel incentive program remains
unchanged. Under this incentive, the Company can earn
or forfeit up to 20 basis points of the allowed return on
common equity.

For the rate year ended November 30, 1996, the Company
earned 20 basis points, or approximately $4.3 milUon, net
of tax effects, as a result of its performance under all
incentive programs. For the rate years ended November
30, 1995 and 1994, the Company earned 19 and 50 basis
points, respectively, or approximately $4.0 million and
$9.2 million, respectively, net of tax effects, under the
incentive programs in effect at those times.

The deferred balances resulting from the net margin and
expense reconciTiations, and earned performance-based
incentives are netted at the end of each rate year, as

established under the LRPP and continued under the 1995
Order. The first $15 million of the total deferral is recov-
ered from or credited to ratepayers by increasing or
decreasing the RMC balance. Deferrals in excess of the
$15 million, upon approval of the PSC, are refunded to or
recovered from the customers through the FCA mechanism
over a 12-month period.

For the rate year ended November 30, 1996, the amount
to be returned to customers resulting from the revenue



and expense reconciliations, performance-based incentive
programs and associated carrying charges totaled $14.5
million. Consistent with the mechanics of the LRPP, it is
anticipated that the entire balance of the deferral willbe
used to reduce the RMC balance upon approval by the PSC

of the Company's reconciTiation filing which was submitted
to the PSC in January 1997. For the rate year ended
November 30, 1995, the Company recorded a net deferred
LRPP credit of approximately $41 million. The first
$15 million of the deferral was applied as a reduction to
the RMC while the remaining portion of the deferral of
$26 millionwillbe returned to customers through the
FCA when approved by the PSC. For the rate year ended
November 30, 1994, the Company recorded a net deferred
charge of approximately $79 million. The first $15 million
of the deferral was applied as an increase to the RMC

while the remaining deferral of $64 million was recovered
from customers.

Another mechanism of the LRPP provides that earnings in
excess of the allowed return on common equity, excluding
the impacts of the various incentive and/or penalty
programs, are used to reduce the RMC. For the rate years
ended November 30, 1996 and 1995, the Company earned

$9.1 million and $ 6.2 miUion, respectively, in excess of its
allowed return on common equity. These excess earnings
were applied as reductions to the RMC. In 1994, the
Company did not earn in excess of its allowed return on
common equity.

The Company is currently unable to predict the outcome
of any of the rate proceedings currently before the PSC

and their effect, ifany, on the Company's financial
position, cash flows or results of operations.

In December 1993, the PSC approved a three year gas rate
settlement between the Company and the Staff of the PSC.

The gas rate settlement provided annual gas rate increases
of 4.7%, 3.8% arid 3.2% for each of the three rate years
beginning December 1, 1993, 1994 and 1995, respectively.
In the determination of the revenue requirements for the
gas rate settlement, an allowed return on common equity
of 10.1% was used.

The gas rate settlement also provided that earnings in
excess of a 10.6% return on common equity be shared
equally between the Company's finn gas customers and its
shareowners. For the rate years ended November 30,
1996, 1995 and 1994, the firm gas customers'ortion of
gas earnings in excess of the allowed return on common
equity totaled approximately $10 million, $ 1 million
and $ 7 million, respectively. In 1996, the Company was
granted permission by the PSC to apply the

customers'ortion

of the gas excess earnings and associated

canying charges for the 1995 and 1994 rate years to the
recovery of deferred costs associated with postretirement
benefits other than pensions and costs incurred for inves-
tigation and remediation of manufactured gas plant (MGP)
sites. The Company has requested that the same treat-

ment be granted for the disposition of the
customers'ortion

of the 1996 rate year gas excess earnings.

The Company currently has no gas rate filings before the
PSC and does not intend to file a gas rate case during the
current rate year, unless required to do so in connection
with the proposed merger with Brooklyn Union.

Note 4. The Class Settlement

The Class Settlement, which became effective on June 28,
1989, resolved a civil lawsuit against the Company brought
under the federal Racketeer influenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act. The lawsuit, which the Class

Settlement resolved, had alleged that the Company made

inadequate disclosures before the PSC concerning the con-
struction and completion of nuclear generating facilities.

The Class Settlement provides the Company's electric
customers with rate reductions aggregating $390 million
that are being reflected as adjustments to their monthly
electric bills over a ten-year period which began on June

1, 1990. Upon its effectiveness, the Company recorded its
liabilityfor the Class Settlement on a present value basis

at $170 million. The Class Settlement obligation at
December 31, 1996 refiects the present value of the
remaining reductions to be refunded to customers. The

remaining reductions to customers bills, amounting to
approximately $201 million as of December 31, 1996,
consists of approximately $21 million for the five-month
period beginning January 1, 1997, and $60 million for
each of the 12-month periods beginning June 1, 1997,
1998 and 1999.

Note 5. Nine Mile Point Nuclear Power Station, Unit 2

The Company has an undivided 18% interest in NMP2,

located near Oswego, New York which is operated by
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (NMPC). Ownership of
NMP2 is shared by five cotenants: the Company (18%),
NMPC (41%), New York State Hectric & Gas Corporation
(18%), Rochester Gas and Hectric Corporation (14%) and
Central Hudson Gas & Hectric Corporation (9%). The
Company's share of the rated capability is approximately
206 MW. The Company's net utilityplant investment,
excluding nuclear fuel, was approximately $715 million
and $740 million at December 31, 1996 and 1995,
respectively. The accumulated provision for depreciation,
excluding decommissioning costs, was approximately
$169 million and $153 million at December 31, 1996 and
1995, respectively. Generation from NMP2 and operating
expenses incurred by NMP2 are shared in the same propor-
tions as the cotenants'espective ownership interests. The
Company's share of operating expenses is included in the
corresponding operating expenses on its Statement of
Income. The Company is required to provide its respective
share of financing for any capital additions to NMP2.

Nuclear fuel costs associated with NMP2 are being amor-,
tized on the basis of the quantity of heat produced for the
generation of electricity.



NMPC has contracted with the United States Department
of Energy for the disposal of spent nuclear fueL The

Company reimburses NMPC for its 18% share of the cost
under the contract at a rate of $1.00 per megawatt hour
of net generation less a factor to account for transmission
line losses. For 1996, 1995 and 1994, this totaled $ 1 4
million, $1.2 million, and $1.4 million, respectively.

NMPC expects to commence the decommissioning of NMP2

in 2026, shortly after the cessation of plant operations,
using a method which provides for the removal of all
equipment and structures and the release of the property
for unrestricted use. The Company's share of decommis-
sioning costs, based upon a "Site-Specific" 1995 study
(1995 study), is estimated to be $368 million in 2026
dollars ($148 million in 1996 dollars). The Company's
estimate for decommissioning costs decreased in 1996 as

compared to 1995 principally as a result of a reduction
in the estimated annual inflation factor. The Company's
share of the estimated decommissioning costs is currently
being provided for in electric rates and is being charged to
operations as depreciation expense over the service life of
NMP2. The amount of decommissioning costs recorded as

'epreciationexpense in 1996, 1995 and 1994 was $3.9
million, $2.3 million and $1.6 million, respectively. The
accumulated decommissioning costs collected in rates
through December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 amounted to
$14.9 million, $11.0 million and $8.7 million, respectively.

The Company has established trust funds for the decom-
missioning of the contaminated portion of the NMP2

plant. It is currently estimated that the cost to decom-
mission the contaminated portion of the plant willbe
approximately 76% of the total decommissioning costs.
These funds comply with regulations issued by the NRC

and the FERC governing the funding of nuclear plant
decommissioning costs. The Company's policy is to make
quarterly contributions to the funds based upon the
amount of decommissioning costs reflected in rates. As of
December 31, 1996, the balance in these funds, including
reinvested net earnings, was approximately $15.3 million.
These amounts are included on the Company's Balance
Sheet in Nonutility Property and Other Investments.
The trust funds investment consists of U.S. Treasury debt
securities and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts of
these instruments approximate fair market value.
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The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
exposure draft in 1996 entitled "Accounting for Certain
Liabilities Related to Closure or Removal of Long-Lived
Assets". Under the provisions of the exposure draft,
the Company would be required to change its current
accounting practices for decommissioning costs as

follows: (i) the Company's share of the total estimated
decommissioning costs would be accounted for as a

liability, based on discounted future cash flows;

(ii) the recognition of the liabilityfor decommissioning
costs would result in a corresponding increase to the cost

of the nuclear plant rather than as depreciation expense;
and (iii) investment earnings on the assets dedicated to

'he

external decommissioning trust fund would be record-
ed as investment income rather than as an increase to
accumulated depreciation. Ifthe Company was required
to record the present value of its share of NMP2 decom-
missioning costs on its Balance Sheet as of December 31,
1996, the Company would have to recognize a liabilityand
corresponding increase to nuclear plant of approximately
$54 million.

n

NMPC procures public liabilityand property insurance for
NMP2, and the Company reimburses NMPC for its 18%
share of those costs.

The Price-Anderson Act mandates that nuclear power
plants secure financial protection in the event of a nuclear
accident. This protection must consist of two levels.
The primary level provides liabilityinsurance coverage of
$ 200 million (the maximum amount available) in the
event of a nuclear accident. Ifclaims exceed that amount,
a second level of protection is provided through a retro-
spective assessment of all licensed operating reactors.
Currently, this "secondary financial protection" subjects
each of the 110 presently licensed nuclear reactors in
the United States to a retrospective assessment up to
$76 million for each nuclear incident, payable at a rate
not to exceed $10 million per year. The Company's inter-
est in NMP2 could expose it to a maximum potential loss

of $13.6 million, per incident, through assessments of
$1.8 million per year in the event of a serious nuclear
accident at NMP2 or another licensed U.S. commercial
nuclear reactor. These assessments are subject to periodic
inflation indexing and to a 5% surcharge if funds prove
insufficient to pay claims.

NMPC has also procured $500 million primary nuclear
property insurance with the Nuclear Insurance Pools and
approximately $2.3 million of additional protection
(including decontamination costs) in excess of the primary
layer through Nuclear Hectric Insurance Limited (NEIL).
Each member of NEIL, including the Company, is also

subject to retrospective premium adjustments in the event
losses exceed accumulated reserves. For its share of NMP2,
the Company could be assessed up to approximately
$1.9 million per loss. This level of insurance is in excess

of the NRCs required $1.06 billion of coverage.

The Company has obtained insurance coverage from NEIL
for the extra expense incurred in purchasing replacement
power'during prolonged accidental outages. Under this
program, should losses exceed the accumulated reserves
of NEIL, each member, including the Company, would be
liable for its share of deficiency. The Company's maximum
liabilityper incident under the replacement power
coverage, in the event of a deficiency, is approximately
$842,000.
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In October 1996, NMK, along with other companies,
received a letter from the NRC requiring them to provide
the NRC with information on the "adequacy and availabili-
ty" of design basis documentation on their nuclear plants
within 120 days. Such information willbe used by the
NRC to verify that companies are in compliance with the
terms and conditions of their license(s) and NRC regula-
tions. In addition, it willallow the NRC to determine if
other inspection activities or enforcement actions should
be taken on a particular company. NMPC pl'ans to respond
to the NRC by the February 9, 1997 due date.

NMPC believes that the NRC is becoming more stringent
as indicated by this request and that a direct cost impact
on companies with nuclear plants may result. The

Company is unable to predict how such a higher risk
operating environment may affect its financial position,
cash flows or results of operations.

Note 6. Capital Stock

RmuuuQhxk
The Company has 150,000,000 shares of authorized
common stock, of which 120,784,277 were issued and
3,485 shares were held in Treasury at December 31, 1996.
The Company has 1,678,208 shares reserved for sale

through its Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 2,728,486
shares committed to the Automatic Dividend Reinvestment
Plan and 97,093 shares reserved for conversion of the
Series I Convertible Preferred Stock at a rate of $17.15
per share. In addition, in connection with the Share

Exchange Agreement, as discussed in Note 10; the
Company has granted Brooklyn Union the right, under
certain circumstances, to purchase 23,981,964 shares of
common stock at a price of $ 19.725 per share.

Zzhmk5bzk
The Company has 7,000,000 authorized shares, cumulative
preferred stock, par value $100 per share and 30,000,000
authorized shares, cumulative preferred stock, par value
$25 per share. Dividends on preferred stock are paid in
preference to dividends on common stock or any other
stock ranking junior to preferred stock.

Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory Redemption

The aggregate fair value of redeemable preferred stock
with mandatory redemptions at December 31, 1996
and 1995 amounted to approximately $637 million and
$598 million, respectively, compared to their canying
amounts of $640 million and $644 million, respectively.
For a further discussion on the basis of the fair value of
the securities discussed above, see Note 1.

Each year the Company is required to redeem certain
series of preferred stock through the operation of sinking
fund provisions as follows:

Series Beginnfng Ending ofShares Price

L 7/31/79 7/31/11 10,500 $100

NN 3/1/99 3/1/19 77,700 25

UU 10/15/99 10/15/19 112,000 25

The Company has the non-cumulative option to double
the number of shares to be redeemed pursuant to the
sinking fund provisions in any year for the preferred stock
series NN and UU. The aggregate par value of preferred
stock required to be redeemed through sinking funds is

$1.1 million in 1997 and 1998 and $5.8 million in each

of the years 1999, 2000 and 2001.

The Company is also required to redeem all. shares of
certain series of preferred stock which are not subject to
sinking fund requirements. The mandatory redemption
requirements for these series are as follows:

Serfes
Redemption

Date
Number
ofShares

Redemption
Amounts

$1.67 Series GG 3/1/99 880,000 $ 22,000,000

7.95% Series AA 6/1/00 14,520,000 363,000,000

7.05% Series QQ 5/1/01 3,464,000 86,600,000

7.66% Series CC 8/1/02 570,000 57,000,000

5.00% Series B

4.25% Series D

4.35% Series E

4.35% Series F

5 1/8% Series H
5 3 4% Series I - Convertible

$101

102

102

102
102

100

At December 31, 1996, none of the authorized 7,500,000
shares of nonparticipating preference stock, par value
$ 1 per share, which ranks junior to preferred stock, were
outstanding.

Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption

The Company has the option to redeem certain series of
its preferred stock. For the series subject to optional
redemption at December 31, 1996, the call prices were as

follows:

Call Price



Note 7. Long-Term Debt

PCRBs 8 1/4% 1982 $ 17,200

3.25% 1985 A,B 150,000

Tendered every three
years, next tender
October 1997

Tendered annually
on March 1

~GILMMl~~

The General and Refunding (G&R) Bonds are the
Company's only outstanding secured indebtedness.
The G&R Mortgage is a lien on substantially all of the
Company's properties.

The annual G&R Mortgage sinking fund requirement for
1996, due not later than June 30, 1997, is estimated at
$25 million. The Company expects to satisfy this require-

'ent with retired G&R Bonds, property additions, or any
combination thereof.
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The Company has available through October 1, 1997, $250
milUon under its 1989 RevoMng Credit Agreement (1989
RCA). In duly 1996, at the Company's request, the amount
committed by the banks participating in the faciTity was
reduced from $300 million to $250 million. This line of
credit is secured by a first lien upon the Company's
accounts receivable and fuel oil inventories. At December
31, 1996, no amounts were outstanding under the 1989
RCA. The 1989 RCA may be extended for one-year periods
upon the acceptance by the lending banks of a reque'st by
the Company, which must be delivered to the lending
banks prior to April1 of each year. It is the Company's
intent to request an extension prior to April 1, 1997.

A ri in

Authority Financing Notes are issued by the Company
to the New York State Energy Research and Development
Authority (NYSERDA) to secure certain tax-exempt
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, Pollution Control
Revenue Bonds (PCRBs) and Electric FaciTities Revenue
Bonds (EFRBs) issued by NYSERDA. Certain of these bonds
are subject to periodic tender, at which time their interest
rates may be subject to redetermination.

Tender requirements of Authority Financing Notes at
December 31, 1996 were as follows:

(In thousands of dollars)
Interest

Rate Serfes Prfnefpal Tendered

PCRBs

EFRBs

Serfes

1985 A,B
1993 A,B
1994 A
1995 A

Expfratfon Date

3/16/99
11/17/99
10/26/97
8 24 98

Prior to expiration, the Company is required to obtain
either an extension of the letters of credit or a substitute
credit faciTity. Ifneither can be obtained, the authority
financing notes supported by letters of credit must be
redeemed.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's
long-term debt at December 31 were as follows:

(In thousands ofdollars)

1996
Fafr

Value
Carrying
Amount

Generaland Refunding Bonds
Debentures
Authority Financing Notes

Total

$ 1,571,745 $ 1,536,000
2,271,095 2,270,000

950,758 916,675

$ 4,793,598 $ 4,722,675

f995

General and Refunding Bonds
Debentures
Authority Financing Notes

Total

$ 1,968,173 $ 1,951,000
2,245,138 2,270,000

928,967 916,675

$ 5,142,278 $ 5,137,675

For a further discussion on the basis of the fair value of
the securities listed above, see Note 1.

The total long-term debt maturing in each of the next
five years is as follows: 1997, $251 million; 1998, $ 101

million; 1999, $454 million; 2000, $37 million; and 2001,
$146 million.

of credit banks have agreed to pay the principal;interest
and premium, ifapplicable, in the aggregate, up to
approximately $381 million'in the event of dehult. The
obligation of the Company to reimburse the letter of credit
banks is unsecured.

The expiration dates for these letters of credit are as

follows:

KFRBs 4.05% 1993 A
4.0'993 B

4.0'994 A
4.00% 1995 A

50,000 Tendered weekly
50,000 Tendered weekly
50,000 Tendered weekly
50,000 Tendered weekl

The 1995, 1994 and 1993 EFRBs and the 1985 PCRBs are
supported by letters of credit pursuant to which the letter



Note 8. Retirement Benefit Plans

Actuarial present value of benefit
obligation

Vested benefits
Nonvested benefits

$ 547,002 $ 518,487
55,157 54,305

Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 602,159 $ 572,792

Plan assets at fair value $ 746,400 $ 685,300

Actuarial present value of projected
benefit obligation 689,661 662,360

Projected benefit obligation less

than plan assets

Unrecognized net obligation
Unrecognized net gain

56,739 22,940
71,085 77,831

123,759 (97,285)

Net Pre aid Accrued Pension Cost $ 4,065 $ 3,486

Periodic pension cost for the Primary Plan included the
following components:

In thousands ofdollars

1996 1995 1994

Service cost - benefits
earned during the period $ 17,384 $ 15,385 $ 16,465

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation and
service cost 47,927 45,987

Actual return on plan assets (81,165) (102,099)
Net amortization and defenal 33,541 57.665

43,782
(12,431)
(31,633)

Net Periodic Pension Cost $ 17,687 $ 16,938 $ 16,183

~nmrQlm
The Company maintains a defined benefit pension plan
which covers substantially all employees (Primary Plan), a

supplemental plan which covers officers and certain key
executives (Supplemental Plan) and a retirement plan
which covers the Board of Directors (Directors'lan). The

Company also maintains 401(k) plans for its union and
non-union employees to which it does not contribute.

Primary Plan
'he Company's funding policy is to contribute annually to

the Primary Plan a minimum amount consistent with the
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974 plus such additional amounts, ifany, as the
Company may determine to be appropriate from time to
time. Pension benefits are based upon years of participa-
tion in the Primary Plan and compensation.

The Primary Plan's funded status and amounts recognized
on the Balance Sheet at December 31, 1996 and 1995 were

as follows:

In thousands o dollars
1996 1995

Assumptions used in accounting for the Primary Plan were

as follows:

Discount rate
Rate of future compensation

increases

Long-term rate of return
on assets

1996 1995 1994

7.25% 7.25Vo 7.75Vo

5.00% 5.00Vo 5.00Vo

7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

The Primary Plan assets at fair value include cash, cash

equivalents, group annuity contracts, bonds and equity
securities.

In 1993, the PSC issued an Order which addressed the
accounting and ratemaking treatment of pension costs

in accordance with SFAS No. 87, "Employers'ccounting
for Pensions". Under the Order, the Company is required
to recognize any deferred net gains or losses over a

ten-year period rather than using'the corridor approach
method. The Company believes that this method of
accounting for financial reporting purposes results in a

better matching of revenues and the Company's pension
cost. The Company defers differences between pension
rate allowance and pension expense under the Order. In
addition, the PSC requires the Company to measure the
difference between the pension rate allowance and the
annual pension contributions contributed into the
pension fund.

Supplemental Plan
The Supplemental Plan, the cost of which is borne

by the Company's shareowners, provides supplemental
death and retirement benefits for officers and other key
executives without contribution from such employees.
The Supplemental Plan is a non-qualified plan under the
Internal Revenue Code. Death benefits are currently
provided by insurance. The provision for plan benefits,
which are unfunded, totaled approximately $2.7 million
in 1996 and $2.3 million in both 1995 and 1994.

Directors'lan
The Directors'lan provides benefits to directors who are

not officers of the Company. Directors who have served

in that capacity for more than five years qualify as partici-
pants under the plan. The Directors'lan is a non-quali-
fied plan under the Internal Revenue Code. The provision
for retirement benefits, which are unfunded, totaled
approximately $127,000, $114,000 and $148,000 in 1996,
1995 and 1994, respectively.



In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company
provides certain medical and life insurance benefits I'or

retired employees. Substantially aU of the Company's
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they
reach retirement age after working for the Coinpany for a
minimum of five years. These and similar benefits for
active employees are provided by the Company or by
insurance companies whose premiums are based on the
benefits paid during the year. Effective January 1, 1993,
the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 106,
"Employers'ccounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions", which requires the Company to recognize
the expected cost of providing postretirement benefits
when employee services are rendered rather than when
paid. As a result, the Company, in 1993, recorded an
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and a
corresponding regulatory asset of approximately
$376 milUon.

The PSC requires the Company to defer as a regulatory
asset the difference between postretirement benefit
expense recorded for accounting purposes in accordance
with SFAS No. 106 and the postretirement benefit expense
reflected in rates. The ongoing annual postretirement
benefit expense willbe phased into and fullyrefiected in
rates within a five-year period from the year of adoption,
which began December 1, 1993, with the accumulated
regulatory asset being recovered in rates over a 15-year
period, beginning December 1, 1997. In addition, the
Company is required to recognize any deferred net gains
or losses over a ten-year period.

In 1994, the Company established Voluntary Employee's
Beneficiary Association trusts for union and non-union
employees for the funding of incremental costs collected
in rates for postretirement benefits. For the years ended
December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company funded the
trusts with approximately $18 million and $50 million,
respectively.

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation other than
pensions at December 31 was as follows:

In thousands o dollars
1996 1995

SeMce cost - benefits
earned during the period

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation and
service cost

Actual return on plan assets

Net amortization and
deferral

Periodic Postretirement
Benefit Cost

S 10,690 S 9,082 $ 11,275

25,030 22,412 25,713

(3,046) (1,034)

12,175 14,699 5,213

$ 20,499 $ 15,761 $ 31,775

Assumptions used to determine the postretirement benefit
obligation were as foUows:

Discount rate
Rate of future compensation

increases

Long-term rate of return
on assets

1996 1995 1994

7.25% 7.25% 7.75%

5.00%

7.50%

5.00/o
5.0'.50%

The assumed health care cost trend rates used in measur-
ing the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at
December 31, 1996 and 1995 were 8.0% and 8.5%, respec-
tively, graduaHy declining to 6.0o/o in 2001 aiid thereafter.
A one percentage point increase in the health care cost
trend rate would increase the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 1996 and 1995 by
approximately $43 miUion and $36 million, respectively,
and the sum of the service and interest costs in 1996 and
1995 by $ 5 milUon and $4 milUon, respectively.

At December 31, 1996, and 1995, the Plan assets, which
are recorded at fair value, include cash and cash

equiva-'ents,

fixed income investments and approximately
$100,000 of listed equity securities of the Company.

Periodic postretirement benefit cost other than pensions
for the years were as follows:

In thousands o dollars
1996 1995 1994

Retirees

Fully eligible plan participants
Other active plan participants

$ 156,181 S 135,497
56,950 52,028

152,627 142,035

Accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation 365,758 329,560

Plan assets (74,692 (53,646)

Accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets

Unrecognized prior service costs

Unrecognized net gain

291,066 275,914

(188)
75,309 100,335

Accrued Postretirement Benefit Cost $ 366,187 S 376,249



1996 1995

Deferred Tix Assets
Net operating loss canyforwards
Resenres not currently deductible
Tax depreciable basis in excess

of book
Nondiscretionary excess credits
Credit canyforwards
Other

Total Deferred Tax Assets

$ 145,205 $ 338,921

58,981 66,825

34,314
27,700

135,902
186,907

41,428
29,826

149,545
125,246

$ 589,009 $ 751,791

Deferred Tax Liabilities
1989 Settlement
Accelerated depreciation
Call premiums
Rate case defenals
Other

$ 2,163,239
642,702
44,846

2,127
33,496

$ 2,155,418
628,475

50,062
28,971
35,597

Total Deferred Tax LiabiTities 2,886,410 2,898,523

Net Deferred Tax LiabiTi $ 2,297,401 $ 2,146,732

SFAS No. 109 requires utiTities to establish regulatory
assets and liabilities for the portion of its deferred tax
assets and liabiTities that have not yet been recognized
for ratemaking purposes. The major components of these

regulatory assets and liabiTities are as follows:

In thousands ofdollars

1996 1995 ~

Regulatory Assets
1989 Settlement
Plant items
Other

Total Regulatory Assets

Regulatory Liabilities
Canyforward credits
Other

Total Regulatory Liabilities

$ 1,660,871 $ 1,666,744
125,976 149,520

14,069 (13,881)

$ 1,772,778 $ 1,802,383 .

$ 68,421 $ 82,330
34,466 33,730

$ . 102,887 $ 116,060

Note 9. Federal Income Tax

At December 31, the significant components of the
Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities calculated
under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for
Income Taxes", were as follows:

In thousands of dollars „

Income before federal

income tax
Statutory federal

income tax rate

$ 525,721 $ 508,824 $ 478,564

35% 35Vo 35%

Statutory federal
income tax

Additions (reductions)
in federal income tax

Excess of book over

tax depreciation
1989 Settlement
Interest capitalized
Tax credits
Tdx rate change

amortization
Allowance for funds used

dunilg constiuctioii
Other items

$ 184,002 $ 178,088 $ 167,497

14,745
4,213
2,449

(2,058)

18,339
4;212
2,270

(4,383)

18,588
4,213
2,218

(1,025)

(4,779)3,686 3,752

(2,450)
2,905

(2,392)
2,096

(2,305)
3,436

Total Federal Income
Tax Expense $ 209,257 $ 205,538 $ 176,712

Effective Federal

Income Tax Rate 39.8% 40.4'Vo 36.9Vo

The Company's net operating loss (NOL) canyforwards
for federal income tax purposes are estimated to be

approximately $415 million at December 31, 1996. These

NOL carryforwards are scheduled to expire in the years

2004 through 2007. The Company currently has tax
credit canyforwards of approximately $136 million.
This balance is composed of investment tax credit (ITC)

canyforwards,, net of the 35% reduction required by the
Tax Reform Act of 1986, totaling approximately $128

million and research and development credits totaling
approximately $8 million. In 1990 and 1992, the
Company received Revenue Agents'eports disallowing
certain deductions and credits claimed by the Company
on its federal income tax returns for the years 1981

through 1989. The Revenue Agents'eports proposed
IKadjustments which ifsustained, would reduce the IIC
canyforwards to approximately $63 million.

The federal income tax amounts included in the Statement
of Income differ from the amounts which result from

applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income

before income tax, The table below sets forth the reasons

for such differences.

(In thousands ofdollars)

1996 1995 1994



Additionally, the Revenue Agents'eports reflect proposed
adjustments to the Company's federal income tax returns
for the years 1981 through 1989 which, ifsustained,
would give rise to tax deficiencies totaling approximately
$227 million. The Company believes that any such
deficiencies as finally determined would be significantly
less than the amounts proposed in the Revenue

Agents'eports.

The Company has protested some of the pro-
posed adjustments which are presently under review by
the Regional Appeals Office of the Internal Revenue
Service. Ifthis review does not result in a settlement that
is satisfactory to the Company, the Company intends to
seek a judicial review. The Company believes that its
reserves are adequate to cover any tax deficiency that may
ultimately be determined and that cash from operations
willbe sufficient to satisfy any settlement reached.
However, ifnecessary, the Company wiR avail itself of
interim financing via the 1989 RCA to meet this obliga-
tion. The Company currently believes that a settlement of
the 1981 through 1989 years should be reached with the
Regional Appeals Office sometime in 1997.

1

Note 10. Merger Agreement with The Brooklyn Union
Gas Company

On December 29, 1996, the Company and The Brooklyn
Union Gas Company (Brooklyn Union) entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Exchange (Share Exchange
Agreement), pursuant to which the companies willbe
merged in a transaction that willresult in the formation
of a new holding company. The new holding company,
which has not yet been named, willserve approximately
2.2 million customers and have annual revenues of more
than $4.5 billion. The merger is expected to be accom-
plished through a tax-free exchange of shares.

The proposed transaction, which has been approved
by both companies'oards of directors, would unite the
resources of the Company with the resources of Brooklyn
Union. Brooklyn Union, with approximately 3,300
employees, distributes natural gas at retail, primarily in a
territory of approximately 187 square miles which includes
the boroughs of Brooklyn and Staten Island and approxi-
mately two-thirds of the borough of Queens, aR in New
York City. Brooklyn Union has energy-related investments
in gas exploration, production and marketing in the
United States and Canada, as well as energy services in
the United States, including cogeneration products,
pipeline transportation and gas storage.

Under the terms of the proposed transaction,
the'ompany'scommon shareowners willreceive .803 shares

(the Ratio) of the new holding company's common stock
for each share of the Company's common stock that they
currently hold. Brooklyn Union common shareowners will.
receive one share of common stock of the new holding

~ company for each share of Brooklyn Union common stock
that they currently hold. Shareowners of the Company
willown approximately 66% of the common stock of the
new holding company while Brooklyn Union shareowners
willown approximately 34%. The proposed transaction
willhave no effect on either company's debt issues or
outstanding preferred stock.

The Share Exchange Agreement contains certain covenants
of the parties pending the consummation of the transac-
tion. Generally, the parties must carry on their businesses
in the ordinary course consistent with past practice, may
not increase dividends on common stock beyond specified
levels and may not issue capital stock beyond certain
limits. The Share Exchange Agreement also contains
restrictions on, among other things, charter and by-law
amendments, capital expenditures, acquisitions, disposi-
tions, incurrence of indebtedness, certain increases in
employee compensation and benefits, and affiliate
transactions. Accordingly, the Company's ability to engage
in certain activity described herein may be limited or
prohibited by the Share Exchange Agreement.

Upon completion of the merger, Dr. William3. Catacosinos
willbecome chairman and chief executive officer of the
new holding company; Mr. Robert B. CateR, currently
chairman and chief executive officer of Brooklyn Union,
willbecome president and chief operating officer of
the new holding company. One year after the closing,
Mr. CateR wiR succeed Dr. Catacosinos as chief executive
officer, with Dr. Catacosinos continuing as chairman. The
board of directors of the new company willbe composed
of 15 members, six from the Company, six from Brooklyn
Union and three additional persons previously unaffiliated
with either company and jointly selected by them.

The companies willcontinue their respective current
dividend policies until the closing, consistent with the
provisions of the Share Exchange Agreement. It is
expected that the new holding company's dividend policy
wiR be determined prior to closing.

The merger is conditioned upon, among other things, the
approval of the merger by the holders of two-thirds of the
outstanding shares of common stock of each of the
Company and Brooklyn Union and the receipt of aR
required regulatory approvals. The Company is unable to
deternune when or ifaR required approvals willbe
obtained.



In 1995, the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA), an

agency of the State of New York (NYS), was requested

by the Governor of NYS to develop a plan, pursuant to its
authority under NYS law, to provide an electric rate reduc-

tion of at least 10%, provide a framework for long-term
competition in power production and protect property
taxpayers on Long Island.

The Share Exchange Agreement contemplates that
discussions, which are currently in progress, willcontinue
with LIPA to arrive at an agreement mutually acceptable

to the Company, Brooklyn Union and LIPA, pursuant to
which LIPA would acquire certain assets or securities of
the Company, the consideration for which would inure to
the benefit of the new hoMing company. In the event
that such a transaction is completed, the Ratio would
become .880. In connection with discussions with LIPA,
LIPA has indicated that it may exercise its power of emi-

nent domain over all or a portion of the Company's assets

or securities, in order to acMeve its objective of reducing
current electric rates, ifa negotiated agreement cannot be

reached. The Company is unable to determine when or if
an agreement with LIPA willbe reached, or what action, if
any, LIPA willtake ifsuch an agreement is not reached.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

~mI~~
Electric
The Company has entered into contracts with numerous
Independent Power Producers (IPPs) and the New York

Power Authority (NYPA) for electric generating capacity.
Under the terms of the agreement with NYPA, which is set
to expire in May 2014, the Company may purchase up to
100'/o of the electric energy produced at the NYPA facility
located within the Company's service territory at
Holtsville, NY. The Company is required to reimburse NYPA

for the minimum debt service payments, and to make

fixed non-energy payments and expenses associated with
operating and maintaining the plant.

With respect to contracts entered into with the IPPs, the
Company is obligated to purchase all the energy they
make available to the Company (at prices that often
exceed current market prices). However, the Company has

no obligation to the IPPs ifthey fail to deliver energy. For

purposes of the table below, the Company has assumed

fullperformance by the IPPs, as no event has occurred

to suggest anything less than full performance by these

parties.

The Company also has contracted with NYPA for firm
transmission (wheeling) capacity in connection with a

transmission cable which was constructed, in part, for
the benefit of the Company. In accordance with the
provisions of this agreement which expire in 2020, the
Company is required to reimburse NYPA for debt service

payments and the cost of operating and maintaining the
cables. The cost of such contracts is included in electric
fuel expense and is recoverable through rates.

The following table represents the Company's commit-
ments under purchase power contracts.

Electric Operations In millions of dollars

IfyPA Holtsvfffe
Debt Servfce Other Pfxed Charges Energy» Pfrm Transmission IPPs* Total Business*

1997
1998

1999
2000
2001
Subsequent Years

$ 20.3
21.6
21.7
21.8
21.9

259.9

$ 15.0
15.2
16.3
16.4
16.6

254.9

$ 7.7
9.0
7.2
8.0

11.3
137.0

$ 27.8
27.8
27.2
27.0
29.0

557.4

$ 110.7
115.3
118.3

123.3
126.7

1,161.6

$ 181.5
188.9
190.7
196.5
205.5

2,370.8

Total

Less: Imputed Interest
$ 367.2 $ 334 4 $ 180.2 $ 696.2 $ 1,755.9 $ 3,333.9

188.0 183.7 96.9 426.4 841.8 1,736.8

Present Value of Payments $ 179.2 $ 150.7 $ 83.3 $ 269.8 $ 914.1 $ 1,597.1

Assumes fullperformance by the IPPs and IIYPA.



1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
Subsequent Years

Total
Less: Imputed Interest
Present Value of Pa ents

$ 38.7
37.6
37.6
37.6
34.7

232.5

$ 4'18.7

182.1

$ 236.6

"Continuous Emission Monitoring
The Company expended approximately $ 1 million in 1996
to meet continuous emission monitoring requirements,
to meet Phase IInitrogen oxide (NOx) reduction require-
ments under the federal Clean AirAct (CAA). Subject to
requirements that are expected to be promulgated in
forthcoming regulations, the Company estimates that it
may be required to expend approximately $44 millionby
2003 to meet. Phase II and Phase IIINOx reduction

. requirements and. approximately $ 2 millionby 1999 to
meet potential requirements for the control of hazardous
air pollutants from power plants. The Company believes
that all of the above costs willbe recoverable through
rates.

The electric industry continues to undergo fundamental
changes as regulators, elected officials and customers seek
lower energy prices. These changes, which may have a
significant impact on future financial performance of
electric utilities, are being driven by a number of factors
including a regulatory environment in which traditional
cost-based regulation is seen as a barrie to lower energy
prices. In 1996, both the PSC and the FERC continued
their separate, but in some cases paiallel, initiatives with
respect to developing a framework for a competitive
electric marketplace.

The Electric Industry - State Regulatory Issues
In.1994, the PSC began the second phase of its
Competitive Opportunities Proceedings to investigate
issues related to the future of the regulatory process in an
industry which is moving toward competition. The PSGs

overall objective was to identify regulatory and ratemak-

Gas

In order to provide sufficient supplies of gas for the
Company's gas customers, the Company has entered into
long-tenn firm gas transporation, storage and supply
contracts which contain provisions that require the
Company to make payments even ifthe services are not
provided (take-or-pay.) The cost of such contracts is
included in gas fuel expense and is recoverable through
rates. The table below sets forth the Company's aggregate
obligation under these commitments which extend
through 2012.

Gas 0 erations In millions o dollars

ing practices that would assist New York State utilities in
the transition to a more competitive environment
designed to increase efficiency in providing electricity
while maintaining safe, affordable and reliable senrice.

As a result of the Competitive Opportunities Proceedings,
in May 1996, the PSC issued an order (Order) which stated
its belief that introducing competition to the electric
industry in'New York has the potential to reduce electric
rates over time, increase customer choice and encourage
economic growth. The Order calls for a competitive whole-
sale power market to be in place by early 1997 which
willbe followed by the introduction of retail access for
all customers by early 1998.

The PSC stated that competition should be transitioned
on an individual company basis, due to differences in
individual service territories, the level and type of strand-
able investments (i.e., costs that utilities would have
otherwise recovered through rates under traditional cost
of service regulation that, under market competition,
wouM not be recoverable) and utiTity specific financial
conditions.

The Order contemplates that implementation of competi-
tion willproceed on two tracks. The Order requires that
each major electric utiTity file a rat%estructuring 'plan
which is consistent with the PSGs policy and vision for
increased competition. Those plans were submitted by
October 1, 1996, in compliance with the Order. However,
the Company was exempted from this requirement due to
the PSGs separate investigation of the Company's rates
and LIPA's examination of the Company's structure. Since
October 1, 1996, proceedings have commenced for the five
electric utiTities which filed restructuring plans in accor-
dance with track one and the Company has intervened in
each of these proceedings.

The PSC order also anticipated that certain other filings
would be made on October 1, 1996, by all New York State
utilities, to both the PSC and the FERC. The filings were
to address the delineation of transmission and distribution
facilities jurisdiction between the FERC or the PSC, a pric-
ing of each company's transmission services, and a joint
filing by all the utilities to address the formation of an
Independent System Operator (ISO) and the creation of a
market exchange that willestablish spot market prices.
Although there were extensive collhborative meetings
among the parties, it was not possible for the additional
filings to be completed by October 1, 1996. While these
discussions are continuing in an attempt to narrow the
differences among the parties, on December 31, 1996, the
New York Power Pool (NYPP) members submitted a compli-
ance filing to the FERC which provides open membership
and comparable services to eligible entities in accordance
with FERC Order 888, discussed below. It is anticipated
that the New York State utilities willsubmit the full
ISO/Power Exchange filing to the FERC during the first
quarter of 1997.



The PSC envisions that a fullyoperational wholesale com-

petitive structure willfoster the expeditious movement to
full retail competition. The PSC's vision of the retail com-

petitive structure, known as the Flexible Retail Poolco

Model, consists of: (i) the creation of an ISO to coordinate
the safe and reliable operation of electric generation and
transmission; (ii) open access to the transmission system,
which would be regulated by the FERC; (iii) the continua-
tion of a regulated distribution company to operate and
maintain the distribution system; (iv) the deregulation of
energy/customer services such as meter reading and cus-

tomer billing; (v) the ability of customers to choose

among suppliers of electricity; and (vi) the allowance of
customers to acquire electricity either by long-term con-

tracts, purchases on the spot market or a combination of
the two.

One issue discussed in the Order that could affect the
Company is strandable investments. The PSC stated in
its Order that it is not required to allow recovery of all
prudently incurred investments, that it has considerable
discretion to set rates that balance ratepayer and share-
holder interests, and that the amount of strandable
investments that a utilitywillbe permitted to recover will
depend on the particular circumstances of each utility.
Additionally, the Order provided that every effort should
be made by utilities to mitigate these costs prior to
seeking recovery.

Certain aspects of the restructuring envisioned by the
PSC —particularly the PSC's apparent determinations that
it may deny the utiTities recovery of prudent investments
made on behalf of the public, order retail wheeling,
require divestiture of generation assets and deregulate
certain sectors of the energy market—could, ifimple-
mented, have a negative impact on the operations and
financial conditions of New York's investor-owned electric
utilities, including the Company.

The Company is party to a lawsuit commenced in
September 1996 by the Energy Association of New York
State and the state's other investor-owned electric
utilities (collectively, Petitioners) against the PSC in
New York Supreme Court, Albany County (Q~ugrgy

fN Y rk ). The
Petitioners have requested that the Court declare that the
Order is unlawful or, in the alternative, that the Court
clarify that the PSC's statements in the Order constitute
simply a policy statement with no binding legal effect.
In November 1996, the Court issued a Decision and Order

denying the Petitioners'equest to invalidate the Order.

Although the Court stated that most of the Order is a
non-binding statement of policy, the Court rejected the
Petitioners'ubstantive challenges to the Order. In
December 1996, Petitioners filed a notice of appeal with
the Third Department of the Appellate Division of the New
York State Supreme Court. The litigation is ongoing and
the Company is unable at this time to predict the likeli-

hood of success or the impact of the litigation on the
Company's financial position, cash flows or results of
operations. Oral argument in the Appellate Division has

not yet been scheduled, but a decision is expected by the
end of 1997.

The Electric Industry - Federal Regulatory Issues

In April 1996, in response to its Notice of Proposed

Rulemaking issued in March 1995, the FERC issued two
orders relating to the development of competitive whole-
sale electric markets.

Order 888 is a final rule on open transmission access and
stranded cost recovery and provides that the FERC has

exclusive jurisdiction over interstate wholesale wheeling
and that utility transmission systems must now be open
to qualifying sellers and purchasers of power on a non-
discriminatory basis.

Order 888 allows utilities to recover legitimate, prudent
and verifiable stranded costs associated with wholesale
transmission, including the circumstances where full
requirements customers become wholesale transmission
customers, such as where a municipality establishes its
own electric system.

With respect to retail wheeling, the FERC concluded that
it has jurisdiction over rates, terms and conditions of
service, but would leave the issue of recovery of the costs

stranded by retail wheeling to the states.

Order 888 required utilities to file open access tariffs
under which they would provide transmission services,
comparable to those which they provide themselves and to
third parties on a non-discriminatory basis. Additionally,
utilities must use these same tariffs for their own whole-
sale sales. The Company filed its open access tariffin
July 1996.

In September 1996, the FERC ordered Rate Hearings on
28 utiTity transmission tariffs, including the Company's.

On the basis of a preliminaDJ review, the FERC was not
satisfied that the tariffrates were just and reasonable.
Settlement discussions have been held between the
Company and various intervenors concerning the Company's

transmission rates. In December 1996, the parties reached
a tentative settlement on the rate issues. The procedural
schedule was suspended pending filing of the settlement
agreement, which is anticipated during the first quarter of
1997. Non-rate issues associated with the Company's open
access tariffhave not yet been addressed by the FERC.

Order 889, which is a final rule on a transmission pricing
bulletin board, addresses the rules and technical standards
for operation of an electronic bulletin board that will
make available, on a real-time basis, the price, availabiTity
and other pertinent information concerning each trans-
mission utiTity's services. It also addresses standards of
conduct to ensure that transmission utilities functionaLLy
separate their transmission and wholesale power merchant
functions to prevent discriminatory self-dealing. In



December 1996, the Company filed its standards of
conduct in accordance with the Order.

With other members of the industry, the Company has
participated in several joint petitions for rehearing and/or
clarification of the FERC's Orders 888 and 889. Among
other issues, these petitions address the FERGs obligation
to exercise its jurisdiction to provide for the recovery of
strandable investments in any retail wheeling situations.
The outcome and timing of the FERC Orders on rehearing
are uncertain.

It is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these
proceedings, the timing thereof, or the amount, ifany,
of stranded costs that the Company would recover in a
competitive environment. The outcome of the state and
federal regulatory proceedings could adversely affect the
Company's ability to apply Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," which, pursuant
to SFAS No. 101, "Accounting for Discontinuation of
Application of SFAS No. 71," could then require a signifi-
cant write-down of all or a portion of the Company's net
regulatory assets. Ifthe Company were unable to continue
to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 71, at December 31,
1996, the Company estimates that approximately $4.6
billion wouM have been written offat such time.

The Company's Service Territory
The Company's geographic location and the limited
electrical interconnections to Long Island serve to limit
the accessibility of its transmission grid to potential
competitors from off the system. However, the changing
utilityregulatory environment has affected the Company

by requiring the Company to co-exist with state and
federally mandated competitors. These competitors are
non-utility generators (NUGS), NYPA and Municipal
Distribution Agencies (MDAs).

The Public UtilityRegulatory Policies Act of 1978 (PURPA),
the goal of which is to reduce the United States'epen-
dency on foreign oil, to encourage energy conservation
and to promote diversification of the fuel supply, has
negatively impacted the Company through the encourage-
ment of the NUG industry. PURPA provides for the
development of a new class of electric generators which
rely on either cogeneration technology or alternate fuels.
Utilities are obligated under PURPA to purchase the
output of certain of these generators, which are known
as qualified faciTities (QFs).

In 1996, the Company lost sales to NUGs totaling
422 gigawatt-hours (GWh) representing a loss in electric
revenues net of fuel (net revenues) of approximately
$34 million, or 1.9% of the Company's net revenues. In
1995, the Company lost sales to NUGs totaling 366 GWh

or approximately $28 million or 1.5% of the Company's
net revenues.

The increase in lost net revenues resulted principally from
the completion of seven facilities that became commercially
operational during 1996 and the fullyear operation of the
IPP located at the State University of New York at Stony
Brook, NY. The Company estimates that in 1997, sales

losses to NUGs willbe 429 GWh, or approximately 1.8% of
projected net revenues.

The Company believes that load losses due to NUGs have
stabilized. This belief is based on the fact that the
Company's customer load characteristics, which lack a
significant industrial base and related large thermal, load,
willmitigate load loss and thereby make cogeneration
economically unattractive.

Additionally, as mentioned above, the Company is required
to purchase all the power offered by QFs which in 1996

approximated 218 megawatts (MW) and in early 1995
approximated 205 MW. The increase was the result of the
SUNY Stony Brook facility going on line in mid 1995. The

Company estimates that purchases from QFs required by
federal and state law cost the Company $63 million and
$53 million in 1996 and 1995, respectively, more than it
would have cost had the Company generated this power.

QFs have the choice of pricing sales to the Company at
either the PSGs published estimates of the Company's
long-range avoided costs (LRAC) or the Company's tariff
rates, which are modified from time to time, refiecting
the Company's actual avoided costs. Additionally, until
repealed in 1992, New York State law set a minimum price
of six cents per kilowatt-hour (kWh) for utilitypurchases
of power from certain categories of QFs, considerably
above the Company's avoided cost. The six cent minimum
continues to apply to contracts entered into before June
1992. The Company believes that the repeal of the six
cent minimum, coupled with recent PSC updates which
resulted in lower LRAC estimates, has significantly reduced
the economic benefits of constructing new QFs within its
service temtory.

The Company has also experienced a revenue loss
as a result of its policy of voluntarily providing wheeling
of NYPA power for economic development. The Company
estimates that in 1996 and 1995 NYPA power displaced
approximately 417 GWh and 429 GWh of annual energy
sales, respectively. Net revenue loss associated with these
volumes of sales is approximately $ 26 million, or 1.4% of
the Company's 1996 net revenues, and $30 million, or
1.6% of the Company's 1995 net revenues. Currently, the
potential loss of additional load is limited by conditions in
the Company's transmission agreements with NYPA.

A number. of customer groups are seeking to hasten
.consideration and implementation of full retail com-
petition. For example, an energy consultant has petitioned
the PSC, seeking alternate sources of power for Long
Island school districts. The County of Nassau has also
petitioned the PSC to authorize retail wheeling for all
classes of electric customers in the County.



In addition, several towns and villages on Long Bland are
investigating municipalization, in which customers form a
government-sponsored electric supply company. This is
one form of competition that is likely to increase as a
result of the National Energy Policy Act of 1992 (NEPA).
NEPA sought to increase economic efficiency in the
creation and distribution of power by relaxing restrictions
on the entry of new competitors to the wholesale electric
power market. NEPA does so by creating exempt whole-
sale generators that can sell power in wholesale markets
without the regulatory constraint placed on utilitygenera-
tors such as on the Company. NEPA also expanded the
FERCs authority to grant access to utilitytransmission
systems to aH parties who seek wholesale wheeling for
wholesale competition. While it should be noted that the
FERC's position favoring stranded cost recovery from retail-
turned-wholesale customers willreduce utilityrisk from
municipalization, significant issues associated with the
removal of restrictions on wholesale transmission system
access have yet to be resolved.

There are numerous towns and villages in the Company's
service territory that are considering the formation of a
municipally owned and operated electric authority to

, replace the services currently provided by the Company.

In 1995, Suffolk County issued a request for proposal from
suppliers for up to 300 MW of power which the County
would then sell to its residential and commercial customers.
The County,has awarded the bid to two off-Long Island
suppliers and has requested the Company to deliver the
power. After the Company challenged Suffolk County's
eligibilityfor such service, the County petitioned the FERC

to order the Company to provide the requested transmis-
sion service.

In December 1996, the FERC ordered the Company to
provide transmission services to Suffolk County to the
extent necessary to accommodate proposed sales to
customers to which it was providing service on the date
of enactment of NEPA (this Order could provide Suffolk
County with the ability to import up to 200 MW of power
on a daily basis). The FERC reserved decision on the
remaining 100 MW of Suffolk County's request until the
County identifies the ownership or control of distribution
facilities that it alleges qualifies it for a wheeling order to
Suffolk County customers who were not receiving service
on the date of NEPA's enactment. The Company may ask
the FERC to reconsider their decision once that decision
becomes final, which is not expected for several months.
The FERC has yet to determine the pricing of that service.
As previously noted, FERC Order 888 allows utilities to
recover legitimate, prudent and verifiable stranded costs
associated with wholesale transmission, including the
circumstances where full requirements customers become
wholesale transmission customers, such as where a
municipality establishes its own electric system.

The matters discussed above involve substantial social,
economic, legal, environmental and financial issues.

The Company is opposed to any proposal that merely
shifts costs from one group of customers to another, that
fails to enhance the provision of least-cost, efficiently-
generated electricity or that fails to provide the Company's

shareowners with an adequate return on and recovery
of their investment. The Company is unable to predict
what action, ifany, the PSC or the FERC may take regard-
ing any of these matters, or the impact on the Company's

financial position, cash flows or results of operations if
some or all of these matters are approved or implemented
by the appropriate regulatory authority.

Notwithstanding the outcome of the state or federal
regulatory proceedings, or any other state action, the
Company believes that, among other obligations, the state
has a contractual obligation to allow the Company to
recover its Shoreham-related assets.

The Company is subject to federal, state and local laws
and regulations dealing with air and water quality and
other environmental matters. Environmental matters may
expose the Company to potential liabilities which, in cer-
tain instances, may be imposed without regard to fault or
for historical activities which were lawful at the time they
occurred. The Company continually monitors its activities
in order to determine the impact of its activities on the
environment and to ensure compliance with various envi-
ronmental laws. Except as set forth below, no material
proceedings have been commenced or, to the knowledge
of the Company, are contemplated against the Company
with respect to any matter relating to the protection of
the environment.

The New York State Department of Environmental Con-

servation (DEC) has required the Company and other New
York State utilities to investigate and, where necessary,
remediate their former manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites.
Currently, the Company is the owner of six pieces of prop-
erty on which the Company or certain of its predecessor
companies are believed to have produced manufactured gas.
Operations at these facilities in the late 1800's and early
1900's may have resulted in the disposal of certain waste
products on these sites. Research is underway to deter-
mine the existence and nature of operations and their
relationship, ifany, to the Company or its predecessor
companies.

The Company has entered into discussions with the DEC

which may lead to the issuance of one or more administra-
tive Consent Orders (ACO) regarding the management of
environmental activities at these properties. Although
the exact amount of the Company's remediation costs
cannot yet be determined, based on the findings of inves-
tigations at two of these six sites, estimates indicate that
it willcost approximately $51 million to remediate all
of these sites through the year 2005. Accordingly, the
Company has recorded a $35 million liabilityand a



corresponding regulatory asset to reflect its belief that the
PSC willprovide for the future recovery of these costs

through rates as it has for other New York State utilities.
The $35 million liabilityreflects the present value of the
future stream of payments to investigate and remediate
these sites. The Company used a risk-free rate of 7.25%
to discount this obligation.

In December 1996, the Company filed a complaint in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York against 14 of the Company's insurers which
issued general comprehensive liabiTity (GCL) policies to the
Company. The Company is seeking recovery under the GCL

policies for the costs incurred to date and future costs
associated with the clean-up of the Company's former MGP

sites and Superfund sites for which the Company has been
named a potentially responsible party (PRP). The Company
is seeking a declaratory judgment that the defendant
insurers are bound by the terms of the GCL policies, subject
to the stated coverage limits, to reimburse the Company
for the remediation costs. The outcome of this proceeding
cannot yet be determined.

The Company has been notified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) that it is one of
many PRPs that may be liable for the remediation of three
licensed treatment, storage and disposal sites to which the
Company may have shipped waste products and which
have subsequently become environmentally contaminated.

At one site, located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and
operated by Metal Bank of America, the Company and
nine other PRPs, all of which are public utilities, have
entered into an ACO with the EPA to conduct a Remedial
Investigation and FeasibiTity Study (Rl/FS), which has
been completed and is currently being reviewed by the
EPA. Under a PRP participation agreement, the Company
is responsible for 8.2% of the costs associated with this
RI/FS. The level of remediation required willbe deter-
mined when the EPA issues its decision, but based on
information available to date, the Company currently
anticipates that the total cost to remediate this site will
be between $14 million and $30 million. The Company
has recorded a liabilityof $1.1 million representing its
estimated share of the cost to remediate this site based

upon its 8.2% responsibility under the Rl/FS.

The Company has also been named a PRP for disposal sites
in Kansas Gty, Kansas, and Kansas City, Missouri. The two
sites were used by a company named PCB, Inc. from 1982
until 1987 for the storage, processing, and treatment of
electric equipment, dielectric oils and materials containing
KBs. According to the EPA, the buildings and certain soil
areas outside the buildings are contaminated with PCBs.

In 1994, the EPA requested certain of the large PRPs,

which include several other utilities, to form a group, sign
an ACO, and conduct a remediation program for the sites
under the Toxic Substances Control Act, or in the alterna-
tive, to perform a Superfund cleanup for the sites. The

EPA has provided the Company with documents indicating
that the Company was responsible for less than 1% of

the'aterialsthat were shipped to the Missouri site. The EPA

has not yet completed compiTing the documents for the
Kansas site. The Company intends to join a PRP Group
which includes other utilities, which has been organized
for the purpose of developing and implementing accept-
able remediation programs for the sites. The Company is
currently unable to determine its share of the cost to
remediate these sites.

In addition, the Company was notified that it is a PRP

at a Superfund site located in Farmingdale, New York.
Portions of the site are allegedly contaminated with PCBs,

solvents and metals. The Company was also notified by
other PRPs that it should be responsible for remediation
expenses in the amount of approximately $100,000 associ-

ated with removing KB-contaminated soils from a portion
of the site which formerly contained electric transformers.
The Company is currently unable to determine its share of
costs of remediation at this site.

During 1996, the Connecticut Department of Environ-
mental Protection (DEP) issued a modification to an ACO

previously issued in connection with an investigation of
an electric transmission cable located under the Long
Island Sound (Sound Cable) that is jointlyowned by the
Company and the Connecticut Light and Power Company
(Owners). The modified ACO requires the Owners to
submit to the DEP and DEC a series of reports and studies
describing cable system condition, operation and repair
practices, alternatives for cable improvements or replace-
ment and environmental impacts associated with leaks of
fluid into the Long Island Sound, which have occurred
from time to time. The Company continues to compile
required information and coordinate the activities
necessary to perform these studies and, at the present
time, is unable to determine the costs it willincur to
complete the requirements of the modified ACO or to
comply with any additional requirements.

. Previously, the U.S. Attorney for the District of
Connecticut had commenced an investigation regarding
occasional releases of fluid from the Sound Cable, as well
as associated operating and maintenance practices. The
Owners have provided the U.S. Attorney with all requested
documentation. The Company believes that all activities
associated with the response to occasional releases from
the Sound Cable were consistent with legal and regulatory
requirements.

In addition, during 1996 the Long Island Soundkeeper
Fund, a non-profit organization, filed a suit against the
Owners of the Sound Cable in Federal District Court in
Connecticut alleging that the Sound Cable fluid leaks

constitute unpermitted discharges of pollutants in
violation of the Clean Water Act (CWA) and that such

pollutants present a threat to the environment and public
health. The suit seeks, among other things, injunctive



~ relief prohibiting the Owners from continuing to operate
the Sound Cable in alleged violation of the CWA and civil
penalties of $25,000 per day for each violation from each

of the Owners.

In December 1996, a barge, owned and operated by a third
party, dropped anchor, causing extensive damage to the
Sound Cable and a release of dielectric fluid into the, Long
Island Sound. Temporary clamps and leak abaters have

been placed on the cables and have stopped the leaks.
Permanent repairs are expected to be undertaken in the
late spring of 1997. The preliminary estimate of the cost

* of these repairs is $15 million. The Company intends to
seek recovery from third parties for costs incurred by the
Company as a result of this incident. The timing and
amount of recovery, ifany, cannot yet be determined.
In addition, the Owners maintain insurance coverage for
the Sound Cable which the Company believes will.be suffi-
cient to cover any repair costs. In any event, costs not
reimbursed by a third party or not covered by insurance
willbe shared equally by the Owners.

The Company believes that none of the environmental
matters, discussed above, willhave a material adverse

impact on the Company's financial position, cash flows
or results of operations. In addition, the Company
believes that all sigruficant costs incurred with respect to
environmental investigation and remediation activities,
not recoverable from insurance carriers, willbe recoverable

through rates.

Operating revenues
Electric
Gas

, Total

$ 2,467 $ 2,484 S 2,481

684 591 586

$ 3,151 S 3,075 S 3,067

Operating expenses (excludes federal income tax)
Electric S 1,644 $ 1,657 S 1,640

Gas 560 478 500

Total $ 2,204 S 2,135 S 2,140

Operating income (before federal income tax)
Hectric $ 823 $ 827 S 842

Gas 124 113 85

Total operating income
AFC

Other income and deductions
Interest charges

Federal income tax
Net Income

947 940 927

(6) (7) (7)
(23) (38) (45)
451 476 500

209 206 177

$ 316 $ 303 $ 302

Deprechtion and amortization
Hectric $ 129 $ 122 $ 112

Gas 25 23 19

Note 12. Segments of Business

Identifiable assets by segment include net utilityplant,
regulatory assets, materials and supplies, accrued

unbilled revenues, gas in storage, fuel and deferred

charges. Assets utilized for overall Company operations
consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts

receivable, common net utilityplant and unamortized
cost of issuing securities.

In millions ofdollars

For year ended December 31 1996 1995 1994

Total $ 154 $ 145 $ 131

Construction and nuclear fuel expenditures*
Hectic S 165 $ '62 S 155

Gas 78 84 125

Total $ 243 $ 246 $ 280

'Includes non-cash allowance for other funds used during
construction and excludes Shoreham post-settlement costs.

(In millions ojdollars
At December 31 1996 i995 1994

IdentiQable assets
Hectric
Gas

S 9,835 S 10,020
1,232 1,181

S 10,285
1,181

Total identifiable assets

Assets utilized for overall
Company operations

Total Assets

11,067 11,201 11,466

1,0131,143 1,326

$ 12,210 $ 12,527 S 12,479



Earnings per common share
For the quarter ended March 31

June 30
September 30
December 31

$ .57 $ .48
.23 .24
.97 .99
.43 .39

Note 14. Event Subsequent To The Date Of The Report
Of Independent Auditors (Unaudited)

P r

On April30, 1997, the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA)
submitted to the New York State Public Authorities Control
Board for approval, unexecuted copies of agreements relat-
ed to LIPA's proposed acquisition (via the purchase of the
Company's common stock) of the Company's transmission
and distribution system and certain other assets and liabil-
ities (LIPA Transaction). Prior to LIPA's acquisition of the
common stock, the Company's gas assets, electric generat-
ing facility assets and certain other assets and liabilities
willbe transferred to affiliates of the holding company to
be formed in connection with the Share Exchange
Agreement with Brooklyn Union.

While the specific allocation of assets and liabilities has
not yet been finally determined, it is currently contem-
plated that the holding company would, subject to obtain-
ing all required consents, assume the Company's (i) 7.30%
Debentures due July 15, 1999; (ii) 8.20% Debentures due
March 15, 2023; and (iii) Preferred Stock, 7.95%, Series
AA.

Note 13. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

(In thousands ofdollars except earnings per common share)

1996 1995

Operating revenues
For the quarter ended March 31 $ 864,214 $ 791,188

June 30 694,602 653,824
September 30 849,775 875,794
December 31 742,104 754,322

Operating income
For the quarter ended March 31 $ 190,421 $ 180,875

June 30 141,065 143,246
September 30 235,402 239,561
December 31 169,693 167,936

Net income
For the quarter ended March 31 $ 81,753 $ 70,299

June 30 40,524 41,392
September 30 130,023 131,221
December 31 64,164 60,374

Earnings for common stock
For the quarter ended March 31 $ 68,682 $ 57,127

June 30 27,453 28,220
September 30 116,972 118,069
December 31 51,141 47,250

and consumation of the LIPA Transaction is not condi-
tioned upon consumation of the Share Exchange
Agreement.

The Company is unable to determine when or ifthe agree-
ments related to the LIPA Transaction willbe executed by
the parties or when or ifall consents and approvals
required to consummate the LIPA Transaction willbe
obtained.

Report of Ernst 8 Young LLP,
Independent Auditors

To the Shareowners and Board of Directors of Long Island
Lighting Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of
Long Island Lighting Company and the 'related statement
of capitalization as of December 31, 1996 and 1995 and
the related statements of income, retained earnings and
cash flows for each of the three years'in the period ended
December 31, 1996. These financial statements are.
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibiTity is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial Statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Long Island Lighting Company at December 31,
1996 and 1995, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1996, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Consumation of the Share Exchange Agreement is not con-
ditioned upon the consumation of the LIPA Transaction,

Melville, New York
January 31, 1997



Selected Financial Data

Table 1

Summary of Operations

1996 1995 1994 1993 199Z

(In thousands ofdollars except per share amounts)

Revenues

Operating expenses

$ 3,150,695 $ 3,075,128 $ 3,067,307 $ 2,880,995 $ 2,621,839

2,414,114 2,343,510 2,322,362 2,125,444 1,880,734

Operating income
Other income and (deductions)

736,581
27,512

731,618
43,703

744,945
52,719

755,551
70,874

741,105
66,330

Income before interest charges

Interest charges

764,093 775,321
447,629 „472,035

797,664
495,812

826,425
529,862

807,435
505,461

Net income
Preferred stock dividend requirements

316,464
52,216

303,286
52,620

301,852
53,020

296,563
56,108

301,974
63,954

Earnings for Common Stock

Average common shares outstanding (000)
Earnings per Common Share

$ 264,248 $ 250,666 $ 248,832 $ 240,455'238,020
120,361 119,195 115,880 112,057 111,439

$ 2.20 $ 2.10 $ 2.15 $ 2.15 $ 2.14

Common stock dividends declared per share

Common stock dividends paid per share

Book value per common share at December 31

Common shares outstanding at December 31 (000)
Common shareowners of record at December 31

Table 2

Capitalization Ratios*

$ 1.78
$ 1.78
$ 20.89

120,781
86,607

$ 1.78

$ 1.78

$ 20.50
119,655

93,088

$ 1.78

$ 1.78

$ 20.21
118,417

96,491

$ 1.76

$ 1.75
" $ 19.88
112,332

94,877

$ 1.72

$ 1.71

$ 19.58
111,600

86,111

Long-term debt
Preferred stock
Common equity

59.3%
8.9

31.8

61.8% 62.5% 65 0% 64.7%

8.6 8.6 8.5 8.8
29.6 28.9 26.5 26.5

Total 1PP P% 1PP.0IO 1OP.0% 1PP O% -100 0%

'Includes current maturities of long-term debt and current redemption requirements ofpreferred stock.

Table 3

Operations and Maintenance Expense Details

(In thousands ofdollars)

Payroll and employee benefits
Less - Charged to construction and other

Pa oil and em lo ee benefit char ed to o erations
Fuel and Purchased Power
Fuel —electric operations
Fuel —gas operations
Purchased power costs

Fuel cost adjustments deferred

Total fuel and purchased power

Allother

Total Operations and Maintenance Expense

Full-time Employees at December 31

$ 440,587 $ 440,721 $ 435,830 $ 418,766 $ 420,297

146,162 165,733 155,766 130,432 131,447

294,425 274,988 280,064 288,334 288,850

313,607 266,039 261,154 287,349 282,138
319,773 246,837 267,629 253,511 206,344

331,736 309,807 307,584 292,136 '80,914
(1,865) 12,296 11,619 (5,405) (27,612)

963,251 834,979 847,986 827,591 741,784

204,786 236,405 260,590 233,326 209,095

$ 1,462,462 $ 1,346,372 $ 1,388,640 $ 1,349,251 $ 1,239,729

5,413 5,688 5,947 6,215 6,438



1996 1995 1994 1993 1992

Table 4

Electric Operating Income

(In thousands ofdollars)

Revenues
Residential
Commercial and industrial
Other system revenues

$ 1,205,133 $ 1,204,987- $ 1,202,124 $ 1,145,891
1,174,499 1,194,014 1,196,422 1,132,487

50,513 52,472 52,477 49,790

$ 1,045,799
1,076,302

49,395

Total system revenues
Sales to other utiTities
Other revenues

2,430,145 2,451,473
20,927 19,104
15,363 13,437

2,451,023
14,895
15,719

2,328,168
12,872
'11,069

2,171,496
9,997

13,139

Total Revenues 2,466,435 2,484,014 2,481,637 2,352,109 2,194,632

Operating Expenses
Operations - fuel and purchased power
Operations - other
Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Base financial component amortization
Rate moderation component amortization
Regulatory LiabiTity component amortization
1989 Settlement credits amortization
Other regulatory amortization
Operating taxes
Federal income tax —current
Federal income tax —deferred and other

640,610
288,315

98,007
128,534
100,971
(24,232)
(79,359)

(9,214)
109,532
390,861

42,197
138,307

570,697
293,184
106,031
'121,980

100,971
21,933

(79,359)
(9,214)

155,532
375,164

14,596
168,377

568,738
310,438
107,573
111,996
100,971
197,656

(79,359)
(9,214)
(4,883)

336,263
10,784

156,646

579,032
306,116
111,765
106,149
100,971

88,667
(79,359)

(9,214)
(17,082)
326,407

6,324
158,941

559,583
294,909
105,341
104,034
100,971

(30,444)
(79,359)

(9,214)
(21,984)
331,122

530
158,908

Total Operating Expenses 1,824,529 1,839,892 1,807,609 1,678,717 1,514,397

Electric Operating Income

Table 5

Gas Operating Income

641,906 $ 644,122 $ 674,028 $ 673,392 $ 680,235
I

(In thousands ofdollars)

Revenues
Residential - space heating

- other
Commercial and industrial - space heating

- other

Total firm revenues
Interruptible revenues

Total system revenues
Off-system revenues, net
Other revenues

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Operations - fuel
Operations - other
Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Other regulatory amortization
Operating taxes
Federal income tax - deferred and other

Total Operating Expenses

367,721 $

47,028
144,807
36,549

596,105
37,927

634,032
26,254
23,974

684,260

322,641
92,761
20,128
25,391
17,756
81,215
29,693

589,585

323,729 $

42,046
130,964

34,293

531,032
32,837

563,869
16,213
11,032

591,114

264,282
90,054
22,124
23,377

6,073
72,343
25,365

503,618

326,474 $

42,263
126,092

35,275

530,104
26,804

556,908
20,904

7,858

585,670

279,248
95,576
27,067
18,668

9,211
70,632
14,351

514,753

310,109
39,515

106,140
33,181

488,945
, 24,028

512,973
5,812

10,101

528,886

248,559
81,692
22,087
16,322

(962)
59,440
19,589

446,727

$ 243,950
33,035
90,363
29,094

396,442
19,658

416,100

11,107

427,207

182,201
77,300
20,395
15,103

(88)
57,866
13,560

366,337

Gas Operating Income 94,675 $ 87,496 $ 70,917 $ 82,'159 $ 60,870



Table 6

Electric Sales and Customers

Sales —millions of kWh
Residential
Commercial and industrial
Other system sales

Total system sales

Sales to other utilities

Total Sales

Customers - monthly average
Residential
Commercial and industrial
Other

Total Customers - monthly average

Customers at December 31

1996

7,203
8,242

441

15,886
528

16,414

920,930
104,488

4,595

1,030,013

1,031,205

1995

7,156
8,336

460

15,952
620

16,572

915,162
103,669

4,549

1,023,380

1,025,107

1994

7,159
8,394

457

16,010
372

16,382

908,490
102,490

4,583

1,015,563

1,016,739

1993

7,118
8,257

449

15,824
304

16,128

905,997
102,254

4,553

1,012,804

1,011,965

1992

6,788
8,181

471

15,440
227

15,667

902,885
101,838

4,593

',009,316

1,009,028

Residential
kWh per customer
Revenue per kWh

Commercial and Industrial
kWh per customer
Revenue per kWh

7,821
16.73C

78,880
14.25C

7,819
16.84C

80,410
14.32C

7,880 ',857
16.79C 16.10C

81,901 80,750
14.25C 13.72C

7,518
15.41C

80,333
13.16C

System
kWh per customer
Revenue per kWh

15,423 15,588 15,765 15,624
15.30C 15.37C 15.31C 14.71C

15,297
14.06C

Table 7

Gas Sales and Customers

Sales —thousands of Dth
Residential - space heating

—other
Commercial and industrial - space heating

—other

Total firm sales

Intermptible sales
Off-system sales

Total Sales

Customers - monthly average
Residential —space heating

- other
Commercial and industrial - space heating

- other
~ Total firm customers

Interruptible customers

Total Customers - monthly average

Customers at December 31

Residential
Dth per customer
Revenue per Dth

Commerchl arid Industrial
Dth per customer
Revenue per Dth

~em
Dth per customer
Revenue er Dth

37,697
3,153

16,763
4,291

61,904
7,869
7,457

77,230

249,758
161,164

35,803
10,084

456,809
651

457,460

460,028

99.4
$ 10.15

458.8
$ 8.61

152.5
$ 9.09

35,336
2,929

16,170
4,269

58,704
9,'J76

7,743

75,623

245,452
162,114

35,027
10,313

452,906
623

453,529

455,869

93.9
$ 9.56

450.8
$ 8.09

149.7
$ 8.31

35,693
3,151

15,679
4,366

58,889
6,914
7 232

73,035

239,857

163,608'3,776

10,448

447,689
576

448,265

449,906

96.3
$ 9.49

453.3
$ 8.05

146.8
$ 8.46

37,191
3,297

14,366
4,329

59,183
5,920
2,894

67,997

233,882
166,974

32,783
10,631

444,270
542

444,812

446,384

101.0
$ 8.64

430.6
$ 7.45

146.4
$ 7.88

35,089
3,203

13,662
4,338

56,292
5,090

61,382

227,834
169,189

31,666
10,777

439,466
531

439,997

442,117

96.4
$ 7.23

424.1
$ 6.64

139.5
$ 6.78



Table 8

Electric Operations

1996 1995 1994 1993 i 1992

Energy —millions of kWh
Net generation

"

Power purchased
10,319 10,744 10,034 10,514 10,592

7,388 7,143 7,640 7,023 6,438

Total Energy Available 17,707 17,887 17,674 17,537 17,030

System sales

Com an use and unaccounted for
Total system energy requirements
Sales to other utilities

Total Energy Available

15,886 15,952 16,010 15,824 15,440
1,293 1,315 1,292 1,409 1,363

17,179 17,267 17,302 17,233 16,803
528 620 372 304 227

17,707 17,887 17,674 17,537 17,030

Peak Demand - MW
Station coincident demand
Power purchased —net
System Peak Demand

System Capability - MW
Company stations
Nine Mile Point 2 (18% share)
Firm purchases - net

Total Capability

2,848
757

3,605

3,978
206
710

4,894

3,591
486

4,077

3,957
203
713

4,873

3,253
629

3,882

4,063
189
616

4,868

2,931
1,036

3,967

4,063
188
548

4,799

2,975
636

3,611

4,091
188
432

4,711

Fuel Consumed for Electric Operations
Oil —thousands of barrels
Gas —thousands of Dth
Nuclear - thousands of MW days - thermal

7,063 5,154 7,518 9,740 10,656
50,173 69,826 44,308 36,269 34,475

200 169 203 175 124

Fuel Mix (Percentage of total energy available)
Oil
Gas

Purchased power
Nuclear fuel
Total

24%
25
42

9
100%

17%
36
40

7

100%

25%
23
43

9
1$P/o

34%
19
40

7

100%

37%
19

38
6

100'/o

Table 9

Gas Operations

Company Requirements - thousands of Dth
System sales

Off-system sales

Company use and unaccounted for

Total Company Requirements

Maximum Day Sendout - Dth

69,773 67,880 65,803 65,103 61,382
7,457 7,743 7,232 2,894
3,738 2,054 2,516 1,905 3,577

80,968 77,677 75,551 69,902 64,959

524,762 564,874 585,227, 485,896 448,726

System Capability —Dth per day
Natural gas
LNG manufactured or LP gas

648,695
123,300

592,335 579,897 561,584 561,584
124,700 125,700 120,700 120,700

Total Capability 771,995 717,035 705,597 682,284 682,284

Heating Degree Days
30 ear avera e 4,942 5,132 4,906 4,839 4,899 5,066



1996 1995 1994 1993 1992

Fable 10

Balance Sheet

Assets
Net utilityplant
Regulatory Assets

Base financial component
Rate moderation component
Shoreham post-settlement costs
Shoreham nuclear fuel
Unamortized cost of issuing securities
Postretirement benefits other than pensions

Regulatory tax asset

Other

(In thousands ofdollars)

3,281,548
402,213
991,795

69,113
194,151
360,842

1,772,778
199,879

3,382,519
383,086
968,999

71,244
222,567
383,642

1,802,383
229,809

3,483,490
463,229
922,580

73,371
254,482
412,727

1,831,689
250,804

3,584,461
609,827
777,103

75,497
174,694
402,921

1,848,998
247,858

3,685,432
651,657
586,045

77,629
195,524

190,008

$ 3,695,170 $ 3,594,998 $ 3,498,346 $ 3,347,557 $ 3,161,148

Total Regulatory Assets

NonutiTity property and other investments
Current assets

Deferred charges

'otal Assets

Capitalization and Liabilities
Long-term debt
Unamortized discount on debt

Preferred stock - redemption required
Preferred stock - no redemption required

Total Preferred Stock

Common stock
Premium on capital stock
Capital stock expense

Retained eanungs
Treamy stock, at cost

7,272,319

18,597
1,146,602

76,991

$ 12,209,679

$ 4,471,675
14,903

4,456,772

638,500
63,664

702,164

603,921
1,127,971

(49,330)
840,867

(60)

7,444,249

16,030
1,411,938

60,382

$ 12,527,"597

$ 4,722,675
16,075

4,706,600

639,550
63,934

703,484

598,277
1,114,508

(50,751)
790,919

7,692,372

24,043

1,090,230
174,298

$12,479,289

$ 5,162,675
17,278

5,145,397

644,350
63,957

708,307

592,083
1,101,240

(52,175)
752,480

7,721,359

23,029
1,088,831

272,995

$12,453,771

$ 4,887,733
17,393

4,870,340

649,150
64,038

713,188

561,662
1,010,283

(50,427)
711,432

5,386,295

20,730
979,131
305,819

$ 9,853,123

$ 4,755,733
14,731)

4,741,002

557,900
154,276

712,176

558,002
998,089

(39,304)
667,988

Total Common Shareowners'quity

Total Capitalization

Regulatory LiabiTities

Regulatory liabiTity component
1989 Settlement credits
Regulatory tax liabiTity
Other

Total Regulatory LiabiTities

Current liabilities
Deferred credits
Operating reserves

2,523,369

7,682,305

198,398
127,442
102,887
146,852

575,579

949,627
2,573,208

428,960

2,452,953

7,863,037

277,757
136,655
116,060
132,891

663,363

1,050,021
2,502,040

449,136

2,393,628

',247,332

357,117
145,868
111,218
147,041

761,244

601,311
2,365,780

503,622

2,232,950

7,816,478

436,476
155,081
114,748
142,455

848,760

,1,188,972
2,166,405

433,156

2,184,775

7,637,953

515,835
164,294

102,718

782,847

1,177,130
237,893

17,300

Total Capitalization and Liabilities

Table 11

Construction Expenditures*

$ 12,209,679 $12,527,597 $12,479,289 $12,453,771 $ 9,853,123

(In thousands ofdollars)

Electric
Gas

Common

143,435
71,690
27,659

$ 145,472
79,536
21,477

$ 136,041
120,019

23,610

Total Construction Expenditures $ 246,485 $ 279,670242,784

'Indudes non~h allowance for other funds used during construction and exetudes Shoreham post-settlement costs

$ 137,583
124,859
42,251

$ 304,693

$ 141,752
104,028
. 27,124

$ 272,904



Corporate Information

Executive Offices
175 East Old Country Road
Hicksville, New York 11801
516-755-6650

Common Stock Listed
New York Stock Exchange
Pacific Stock Exchange

Ticker Symbol: LIL

Internet Address: HTTP://WWW.LILCO.COM

E-MailAddress: investor-relationsNlilco.corn

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Common stock and preferred stock
The Bank of New York

Address shareholder inquiries to:
Shareholder Services Department-11E
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286-1612
1-800-482-3638

Send certificates for transfer
and address changes to:
Receive and Deliver Department-11W
P.O. Box 11002
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1612

Internet Address: HTTP://STKXFER.BANKOFNY.COM

E-Mail Address: Shareowner-svcs@Emaibbony.corn

Investor Common Stock Plan
As of June 1, 1997, the Company has implemented the
Investor Common Stock Plan, which allows any interested
investor to purchase LILCO's common stock directly
through the Plan. Features of the Plan includes fullor
partial reinvestment of dividends, monthly optional cash
investments, automatic electronic investment, certificate
safekeeping; direct deposit of cash dividends and direct
sale of shares. Investors may become a LILCO shareholder
through the Plan with a minimum investment of $250.
For more information, and for a copy of the Plan
prospectus, please call the Plan administrator, The Bank
of New York, at 1-800-482-3638 or write to:

The Bank of New York
Shareholder Services Department - 11E

Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286-1258

First $ 18s/s $ 15'/s
Second 17'/* 16s/a

Third 17'/. 16s/s

Fourth 22s/s 17s/s

$0.445
0.445
0.445 -.

0.445

$ 16s/s $ 13s/s $0.445

17'/s 14s/s 0 445

17s/s 15'/s 0.445
17s/s 15'/s 0.445

Form 10-K Annual Report
The Company willfurnish, without charge, 'a copy of the
Company's Annual Report, Form 10-K, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, upon written
request to:

Investor Relations
Long Island Lighting Company
175 East Old Country Road
Hicksville, New York 11801

Our Investor Relations Department is available from
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday to answer

any questions you may have about your LILCO stock. If
you have a question, please call us at 516-545-4914.

Duplicate Mailings
Shareholders with more than one account generally
receive duplicate mailings of annual and other reports.
To eliminate additional maiTings, write to our transfer
agent. Enclose labels or label information, where possible.
Separate dividend checks and proxy material willcontinue
to be sent for each account of record.

Dividend Direct Deposit
SharehoMers can elect to have their quarterly cash
dividends electronically deposited into their personal bank
accounts. Deposits are made on the date the dividend is
payable. Ifyou would like to take advantage of this
service, contact our transfer agent.

Common Stock Prices and Dividends
The common stock of the Company is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Stock Exchange.
Certain of the Company's preferred stock series are traded
on the New York Stock Exchange. The quoted market
prices for the years 1996 and 1995 were as follows:

Quarter 1996 1995

High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
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